Office of the Senate Secretariat

Acadia University Wolfville, Nova Scotia Canada B0P 1X0

Telephone: (902) 585-1617 Facsimile: (902) 585-1078



A meeting of the Senate of Acadia University occurred on Monday, 13 February 2012 beginning at 4:00 p.m. with Chair Diane Holmberg presiding and 42 present.

1) Approval of Agenda

It was moved by B. Jessome and seconded by J. Eustace *that the agenda be approved*.

The Chair pointed out that items 5) b) Awards Committee for Honorary Degrees and Emeriti Distinction - Emeriti Nominations, and 5) e) Committee on Graduate Studies Report to Senate on Graduate Student Supervision were withdrawn, but will come forward again at the March meeting.

MOTION CARRIED.

2) Minutes of the Meeting of 16 January 2012

It was moved by W. Slights and seconded by G. Bissix that the minutes of Monday, 16 January 2012 be approved as distributed.

MOTION CARRIED.

3) Announcements

a) From the Chair of Senate

Regrets were received from W. Brackney, M. Corbett, W. Elliott, S. MacDougall, D. MacKinnon, D. Sears, J. Stanley, J. Wentzell, and G. Whitehall.

The Chair welcomed new member of Senate Jessica Sinclair, Graduate Student Representative, who attended the January meeting as a guest. She also welcomed two guests invited by K. Power: Matthew Bluteau and Alexandra Rice, student candidates for Senate. There were no objections to their attendance. She thanked K. Power for his efforts to fill Graduate Student positions on Senate and Senate Committees, which had been an issue as the Acadia Graduate Students' Association was not active this year.

The Chair reported that membership of various Senate Committees is under review by the By-Laws Committee. Membership on the Faculty Development Committee, e.g., is not staggered as is normally the case, which will result in the terms of three of the four members ending at the same time. It is unknown why this is the case, and there were no objections to staggering the terms for new members of the committee.

The Chair reported that the University of Saskatchewan is undertaking an online survey about academic senates in Canada, and has requested the survey to be circulated to Acadia Senators. Some minor changes were made to the survey by the Acadia Research Ethics Board. An initial survey was completed by R. Jotcham last fall. There were no objections to circulating the survey. The web-link will be e-mailed to Senators shortly after the February meeting. We will receive a summary of the results.

The Chair informed members of Senate that she would be contacting the Chairs of various Senate committees with regard to annual reports. Senate By-Laws state that all standing committees are to present an annual report to the May meeting of Senate, however, this does not leave sufficient time to review and discuss all reports. Furthermore, different Senate Committees have different annual cycles, and reporting dates should be adjusted accordingly.

The terms of reference for Senate Committees are also to be reviewed in terms of whether they are still reasonable, in terms of membership, and whether certain committees should be merged.

The Chair pointed out that for most committees, Committee Chairs are to be selected by committee members. In case a new Committee Chair has not yet been selected to call meetings, she suggested that an "organizing member" could be appointed to call a first meeting, during which a new Chair would be selected. In response to a comment from A. Quéma that the staggering process is meant to ensure continuity and that calling a first meeting is part of the role of Committee Chairs, the Chair pointed out that in some cases the previous Chair has already left before a new Chair is selected. In response to a comment from G. Poulter, the Chair pointed out that the Chair of the Library Committee is nominated by the Nominating Committee from the membership of Senate, with further nominations from the Senate, and elected by Senate.

b) From the President and Vice-Chancellor

President Ivany reported that Sandra McKenzie has commenced her role as Deputy Minister for Labour and Advanced Education. The first meeting of the Excellence Through Partnership Board, which she chairs, was held on 26 January, however, President Ivany was not able to attend. The Partnership Steering Committee will have its first meeting on 17 February. President Ivany will report back at the March meeting of Senate.

President Ivany participated in an "Advocacy Day on the Hill" in Ottawa on 31 January organized by AUCC. Approximately twenty-five university presidents from across Canada participated. There were meetings with stakeholders and parliamentarians to advocate for maintaining research funding, and to express concerns regarding the Jenkins report on federal support for research and development. President Ivany did not expect another round of the Knowledge Infrastructure Program, which provided funding for the renovation of Patterson Hall.

Finally, President Ivany reported that at the Advocacy Day, there was an opportunity to meet with members of the national media and to emphasize the rarity of the Acadia experience in the larger Canadian context.

- c) From the Vice President Academic
- T. Herman reported that Dr. Derek Charke, Associate Professor at the School of Music, was recently nominated for a 2012 Juno Award for Classical Composition of the Year.
- T. Herman announced that the event to celebrate Named Chairs will be held on 13 March at 3:00 pm. Invitations will be sent shortly.
- 4) Brought Forward from 16 January 2012
 - Discussion of Town Hall
 Data presented by Vice-President Academic

The Chair pointed out that at the January meeting of Senate it was decided that the discussion around Town Hall data be continued at the February meeting, with a time limit for the length of the discussion. She first addressed three

items of information requested at the January meeting:

- J. Eustace requested access to Town Hall Data for all Senators: access has been extended to student, lay, and Board Senators (faculty and staff were already provided with access).
- G. Whitehall wanted to know what falls under the instruction vs. the administration categories by CAUBO definitions. Under instruction, there are two subcategories: instruction and unsponsored research, and noncredit instruction. Administration also has two sub-categories: administration in general, and external relations. More information is available on the CAUBO website.
- J. Whidden asked what was meant by "streamlined curricula" (listed under "Opportunities for Reducing Risk and Negative Impacts"): T. Herman provided examples, such as cases where we reciprocally credit courses in two departments, e.g. Biology and Psychology in the area of Neuroscience; similar arrangements have been made between Environmental Sustainability Studies courses and Recreation that are creditable to both. Other examples were the discussion around bringing together courses on research methods across different disciplines, and the recognition that a course on legal issues in Environmental Sciences was taught in another discipline as well.

It was moved by J. Eustace and seconded by R. Cunningham that the debate be limited to three minutes per speaker with two turns each.

It was moved by V. Zamlynny and seconded by B. Jessome that the motion be amended, adding "with the debate lasting until 5:00 pm".

MOTION AS AMENDED CARRIED.

In response to a question from P. Doerr regarding the slide on "Rationalizing Space - Reforming the Timetable", T. Herman explained that classes are spread unevenly across the week, which puts pressure on finite space resources, in particular larger classrooms. For example, there are few classes on Fridays, and virtually no classes on Friday afternoons. He also pointed out that students may want to be able to attend certain classes that are held simultaneously. Efforts from the Registrar's Office have had limited impact so far, although some progress has been made.

J. Eustace asked what was regarded as "sustainable", and noted that it appears to be buildings and residences that make us unsustainable, not people. He wanted to know whether there had been any consideration of e.g. suspending the Varsity Athletics Program. T. Herman acknowledged that the debt was incurred partly due to the cost of buildings, but that having modern facilities for programs is an important component for the recruitment and retention of students. The same applies to the Varsity Athletics Program: approximately ten per cent of our students are varsity athletes, some of whom may not have selected Acadia had there not been a varsity program available.

In response to a question from A. Quéma about the difference in budget allocation for TAs for English/Arts compared to Science, T. Herman responded that the number of TAs for Science is higher as they help run labs, which would be more expensive if run by instructors. The overall number of TA's was reduced as the minimum wage increased. P. Williams confirmed that TAs in Science assist faculty members in delivering labs, and pointed out that this is a question of safety.

A. Quéma thought that the language used for "Opportunities for Reducing Risk and Negative Impacts" was ambiguous, and that some of these may be seen as cuts. T. Herman assured her that there was no hidden agenda, that the slides were designed to generate discussion and that there was no intention to eliminate programs. Rather, significant efforts are being made to preserve the diversity of programs at Acadia and to maintain academic integrity.

J. Whidden expressed concern that program cuts would dilute the experience of excellence at Acadia. In terms of streamlining curricula, he recalled that at his first Senate meeting, a proposal was adopted that a techniques course would become a credit program, which resulted in one fewer course that students had to take.

W. Slights added to T. Herman's comments about the Varsity Athletics Program that this program is important to Alumni and the way they relate to and are giving to the institution. Although there needs to be a balance in terms of funding, this is a positive reason to support the program. He asked about the sequence of some of the slides, e.g. the ones on selective spending, which seemed to be more about "physical plant" spending than academic programs.

T. Herman pointed out that infrastructure and deferred maintenance issues can have a profound influence on the academic sector in terms of the quality of academic programs and the students we are able to attract.

At 5:00 pm the Chair asked whether those present wished to call the question, postpone or extend the discussion. She pointed out there were still five people on the speakers list.

It was moved by H. Kitchin and seconded by K. Power that the debate be extended by fifteen minutes.

MOTION CARRIED.

K. Power asked which CAUBO category the Early Retirement Incentive Program (ERIP) falls under, and wanted to know how we discern faculty ratios. He suggested that, if these are divided as majors by professors, a different model be used in terms of load: he pointed out e.g. that he maintains five courses in a semester and technically should be counted as five students, as he has five different demands placed on professors.

In regard to ERIP, T. Herman agreed to obtain a response from D. Youden and report back. In response to the second question, T. Herman explained that the ratios are counted by the number of FCEs, regardless of whether it concerns part-time or full-time students and whether they are majors or not. The faculty counts are taken by five course equivalents, assuming a standard load of five courses per faculty, regardless of whether these are taught by part-time or full-time faculty. T. Herman pointed out that there are many ways to measure student/faculty ratios, e.g. many institutions do not account for part-time students or part-time faculty. The metric used for the slides is a straightforward one, although there are reasons it can be faulted, and is used mostly to look at trends over time within and across units, recognizing that in almost all units there are courses that are taught off-load that may depress the student/faculty ratio. He thanked K. Power for his suggestion which he saw as an interesting approach.

In response to a question from R. Cunningham, T. Herman agreed to request data on costs and benefits of the Varsity Athletics Program from Student Affairs.

R. Cunningham asked T. Herman to elaborate about the risk of Acadia becoming a four-day university. T. Herman stated that the loss of Fridays as a viable day for classes compromises the flexibility and diversity of what we can offer as an academic institution, and that academic programs have primacy and are designed primarily around a five-day delivery system. S. Lochhead agreed that no classes on Fridays means a loss of opportunity in terms of content, as well as our ability to ensure that students get the classes they need to get.

A. Vibert commented that the "Opportunities for Reducing Risk and Negative Impacts" were the kinds of adjustments we are best able to make in times of scarce resources, and may well be beneficial in any time.

C. Deal pointed out that not only does the Varsity Athletics Program provide benefits for the athletes themselves, an additional benefit is that it provides jobs for students and a way for them to get involved. He noted that Varsity Athletics are not strictly extra-curricular; particularly for students within Professional Studies, the program can provide a direct connection with academics. As an example, he mentioned the Sports Injury Assessment and Management Program. It also offers students an opportunity to become involved in event coordination and promotion. With regard to timetable reform, he agreed this is desirable as many students are unable to attend certain courses due to courses they are interested in taking place at the same time.

At 5:15 pm the Chair repeated whether those present wished to call the question, postpone or extend the discussion.

It was moved by A. Quéma and seconded by B. Jessome that the debate be postponed till the March meeting, to be placed at the beginning of the agenda.

MOTION CARRIED.

5) New Business

- a) Awards Committee for Honorary Degrees and Emeriti Distinction -Honorary Degree Nominations
- b) Nominating Committee Report - Nominations for Community Members on the Research Ethics Board

President Ivany reviewed the process by which nominations for honorary degree recipients were made. On behalf of the Awards Committee, he presented two nominations. This was followed by a secret ballot vote and the approval with majority support of both candidates.

On behalf of M. Corbett, Chair of the Nominating Committee, the Chair made two announcements:

- A Professional Studies representative is needed for the By-Laws Committee. This must be a Senator. Senators are asked to help the Nominating Committee find someone.
- Dr. Stephen Maitzen, Chair of the Research Ethics Board, informed the Nominating Committee that the two community representatives (Dr. Joan Boutilier and Ms. Anita Hudak) are willing to serve an additional three year term. The Nominating Committee is grateful that they are willing to serve Acadia in this way, but is also inviting Senators to suggest additional nominees to serve as REB representatives by the next meeting of Senate.

c) Senate Curriculum Committee - Mid-Term Report **(APPENDIX A)** A. Quéma spoke briefly to the body of the report which outlines the committee's mandate, general procedures and comments. The report contains three motions and one recommendation.

E. Cochrane spoke to comment # 2 of the report, i.e. with regard to interdisciplinary minors in BSc and BScH. Some courses in the interdisciplinary minors require extensive prerequisites, of which students need to be advised.

In response to a question from W. Slights, A. Quéma responded that the Curriculum Committee did not make modifications to the curriculum in response to faculty reduction and/or resource reduction. This is not within the Committee's mandate. Rather, in studying the proposals, the Committee realized that part of the rationale was economic, and wanted to send a signal to Senate.

The Chair asked each Dean to speak to the curriculum changes for their Faculty. She explained that if there were no objections, she would ask for the changes for each Faculty to be moved as a group. If Senators preferred, however, they could ask for the changes to be moved by paragraph or ask for a division of the question. R. Jotcham noted that the curriculum changes had to be approved at this meeting, as registrations for next year will begin before the next meeting of Senate and any changes to programs need to be approved by Senate before they can be offered to students. The Chair suggested therefore that the special order be removed from item 5) g) Review of Tenure-Track Teaching Complement Allocation Committee, and that this item be carried over to the next meeting if not enough time is left.

It was moved by D. Kruisselbrink and seconded by R. Murphy that the 5:30 pm special order "Review Functioning of Tenure-Track Teaching Complement Allocation Committee" be removed.

MOTION CARRIED.

It was moved by B. Moody and seconded by R. Cunningham that the attached curriculum changes from the Faculty of Arts be approved.

There were no objections to moving the curriculum changes from the Faculty of Arts as a group.

B. Moody spoke to the changes to the Faculty of Arts curriculum and noted that these pertained mainly to calendar descriptions, times and prerequisites, as well as some course deletions and additions of new courses.

In response to an inquiry from H. Kitchin regarding students with six credit hours being able to register for her third year courses, R. Jotcham responded that this may have been a data entry error and asked that Dr. Kitchin follow up with an e-mail with further details.

MOTION CARRIED.

It was moved by G. Bissix and seconded by R. Murphy that the attached curriculum changes from the Faculty of Professional Studies be approved.

There were no objections to moving the curriculum changes from the Faculty of Professional Studies as a group.

G. Bissix spoke to the changes to the Faculty of Professional Studies curriculum. He pointed out minor program modifications in the School of Business, such as changes in prerequisites, times and course descriptions. In the School of Recreation Management and Kinesiology, a change in GPA requirement is proposed, as well as a new course in Kinesiology and a change in lab requirements. In Recreation Management, the curriculum changes reflect changes in the profession in terms of looking at areas of sustainability and community development.

MOTION CARRIED.

It was moved by P. Williams and seconded by J. Hennessy that the motion to approve the attached curriculum changes from the Faculty of Pure and Applied Science be divided into two separate motions.

MOTION CARRIED.

It was moved by P. Williams and seconded by S. Major that the attached curriculum changes from the Faculty of Pure and Applied Science be approved, up to and including the changes from the Department of Psychology.

P. Williams spoke to the curriculum changes and pointed out changes in Multidisciplinary Minors. In Biology, there is some cross listing with Psychology, and some streaming within the program. In Chemistry, minor changes to degree requirements and course descriptions are proposed and in Computer Science a change in calendar description. Some program modifications are proposed in Earth and Environmental Science, and some minor changes in Geology. In Mathematics, two new courses were added and in Ordinary Differential Equations there are some changes in prerequisites. Major changes are proposed in Nutrition and Dietetics, primarily resulting from a program review. For a number of courses, a change in academic level is proposed, as a result of which the numbering and prerequisites for all subsequent courses had to be modified. Physics will be slightly changing the way it delivers Introductory Physics. There were no prerequisites for Quantum Mechanics 1, which have now been added. Some minor changes in degree requirements are proposed in Psychology.

MOTION CARRIED.

P. Williams announced that he was withdrawing the motion to approve the remaining curriculum changes from the Faculty of Pure and Applied Science, regarding changes to the language requirements, to be brought back at the March meeting of Senate. He explained that more dialogue with the Faculty of Arts was required and that representatives from the Faculty of Arts would be invited to the next meeting of the Faculty of Pure and Applied Science Council.

A. Quéma spoke to the Curriculum Committee's fourth recommendation that: 'In the event of major interfaculty as well as interdisciplinary curriculum changes or innovations, a mechanism and structure be established that will ensure that proper consultation takes place among Faculties." In terms of context and rationale for the recommendation, she explained that, as it is the Committee's mandate to recommend curriculum proposals for approval at Senate, it needs to ensure that proper consultation takes place. Consultation needs to take place in particular with faculties and programs that are affected by the changes, such as

the Faculty of Pure and Applied Science proposal to modify its language requirements. The Committee therefore was looking to establish a mechanism for proper consultation.

The Chair explained that general committee recommendations can be turned into motions that can be acted upon. First, there would have to be a motion as to whether Senate agrees in principle that a particular recommendation should be adopted; then second, if the motion passes, a motion as to what the next step should be to make the recommendation happen. In this case, it should perhaps be referred to a committee to develop a proposed mechanism, to be brought back to Senate for approval.

It was moved by A. Quéma and seconded by S. Major that the recommendation from the Curriculum Committee be adopted in principle: that, in the event of major interfaculty curriculum changes or innovations, a mechanism and structure be established that will ensure that proper consultation takes place among Faculties.

- D. Kruisselbrink questioned whether there was a need for a mechanism in addition to having faculty representatives from other faculties attend Faculty Council meetings.
- J. Eustace pointed out that the Faculty of Pure and Applied Science Council meeting took place at the same time as the Faculty of Arts Council meeting, which made it difficult to engage in dialogue.
- A. Quéma was of the opinion that, although the Faculty Councils and their representatives will be very useful in transmitting information in this regard, there needs to be another level of consultation if several departments are involved.
- S. Major thought that any curriculum changes that would affect multiple faculties need to go through each faculty's Curriculum Committee prior to going to the Faculty Councils.
- V. Zamlynny commented that in terms of a mechanism, there should be additional questions asked in the questionnaire: whether the program is interdisciplinary and whether the other relevant disciplines been consulted.
- C. Stanley stressed the importance of consultation early in the process, and gave as an example that Environmental Science had not been consulted about the ESST program.

MOTION CARRIED.

P. Williams will be producing a curriculum proposal for the Curriculum Committee to deal with expeditiously for approval at the March meeting of Senate.

It was moved by J. Banks and seconded by J. Eustace that a motion with regard to next steps to act on the recommendation be postponed.

MOTION CARRIED.

d) Report from the Academic Planning and Priorities Committee

Carried over to the next meeting.

e) Review Functioning of Tenure-Track Teaching Complement Allocation Committee Carried over to the next meeting.

6) Adjournment

On motion of K. Power, the meeting adjourned at 6:03 pm.

ORIGINAL SIGNED

J. Postema, Recording Secretary

SENATE CURRICULUM COMMITTEE MID-TERM REPORT FEBRUARY 13, 2012

Membership

May Abou Zahra (FA, attended the first meeting); Emma Cochrane (student representative); Leo Elshof (FPS); Rosemary Jotcham (Registrar); Chris Killacky (ADC); David McMullin (FPAS); Anne Quéma (FA); Rob Raeside (FPAS); Roxanne Seaman (FPS); Ann Smith (Library); Sarah Sweet (student representative for Kyle Power).

Mandate

The SCC reviewed curriculum submissions from the Faculties of Arts, Professional Studies, and Pure and Applied Science. For the benefit of new and returning members of the Committee, the first meeting began with a review of the mandate of the Committee as stipulated by Senate's Constitution. The mandate of the Committee is to recommend curriculum proposals for approval at Senate. In preparing these recommendations, the Committee members ensure that coherence and clarity are maintained while programs and courses are modified.

Process, comments, context, and issues

Generally, the SCC consulted with several schools and departments to address minor problems such as the need to clarify the terms of curriculum proposals, or the need to meet the 60 word requirement for course descriptions. In all cases, the objectives are to ensure that students have access to clear and accurate information, and that programs maintain descriptive coherence.

<u>Comment # 1</u>: While it is not the Committee's mandate, let alone power, to make economic recommendations, the Committee's members wish to note that, in some cases, modifications were made to the curriculum in response to faculty reduction and / or resource reduction.

<u>Comment # 2</u>: With regard to interdisciplinary minors in BSc and BScH, Emma Cochrane and the Committee note that some courses in the interdisciplinary minors require extensive prerequisites. Students need to be advised on this matter.

<u>Comment # 3</u>: The SCC has modified language in question 18.c in curriculum forms 1 and 3 so as to replace the reference to "library staff" with "liaison librarian for the program."

A major issue concerns the decision of the Faculty of Pure and Applied Science to modify its language requirement. The proposal is to replace the required "6 h English or one language other than English" with "6h from the Faculty of Arts selected from the courses with a significant writing component as listed at www.science.acadiau.ca/sigwrtingcourseslist or 6 h of a single language other than English." The SCC invited Peter Williams, Patricia Rigg, Barry Moody, and Romira Worvill to a meeting where the proposal could be debated and clarified. To sum up, P. Williams described the consultation process in the FPAS that led to the formulation of the proposed change, and stated that the chief objectives are to ensure that Science students develop significant reading and writing skills, and that they have access to a variety of courses suiting their interests.

These include English courses, language courses, but also other Arts courses with a significant writing component. B. Moody argued that the practical rationale for making this change is to address the backlog of students who need to fulfill this requirement. P. Rigg and R. Worvill underlined the benefits that students derive from taking English and Languages courses (out of 24 students currently majoring in German, 7 are taking double majors in science). P. Rigg noted that first-year courses in English are capped for pedagogical reasons.

Recommendations

The SCC recommends approval of the following motions:

- 1. That the curriculum changes for the Faculty of Arts (attached) be approved.
- 2. That the curriculum changes for the Faculty of Professional Studies (attached) be approved.
- 3. That the curriculum changes for the Faculty of Pure and Applied Sciences (attached) be approved.

Furthermore, the SCC recommends that:

4. in the event of major interfaculty as well as interdisciplinary curriculum changes or innovations, a mechanism and structure be established that will ensure that proper consultation takes place among Faculties.

Rationale: While the SCC recommends the Faculty of Pure and Applied Science's curriculum change for Senate's approval, its members are concerned that incomplete communication took place between the FPAS and the FA before the change to the language requirement was submitted to the SCC. It is also the view of the members of the Committee that the SCC is not currently mandated to monitor major interfaculty curriculum changes. The problem is as follows: in the case of curriculum changes affecting two programs, the SCC routinely invite members of the schools and departments concerned to discuss the proposals. However, in the case of major changes affecting two or more faculties, the SCC is not in a position to decide who should be selected to discuss an interfaculty curriculum change.

Submission to Senate from the Curriculum Committee – January 2012

Faculty of Arts

English and Theatre

Change in calendar description:

ENGL 2383 RESTORATION & EARLY 18C LIT

This course will introduce students to poetry, plays and prose fiction written by both women and men between the years 1660 and 1730.

Becomes:

ENGL 2383 RESTORATION & EARLY 18C LIT

This course will introduce students to British literature and culture of the period 1660 to 1730.

Change in calendar description:

ENGL 2476 VICTORIAN STUDIES

In this course students read British fiction, poetry, and drama from 1837 - 1901 within cultural, historical, and political contexts. The aim of this course is to introduce students to the works of Tennyson, Browning, Barrett Browning, the Rossettis, Dickens, and others, as well as to convey an understanding of the nineteenth-century issues with which writers were generally preoccupied.

Becomes:

ENGL 2476 VICTORIAN STUDIES

In this course students read British fiction, poetry, and drama from 1837 -1901 within cultural, historical, and political contexts. The aim of this course is to introduce students to canonical and non-canonical works, as well as to convey an understanding of the nineteenth-century issues with which writers were generally preoccupied.

Change in calendar description and course title:

ENGL 2773 EIGHTEENTH-CENTURY NOVEL

The focus will be on the structural idiom of eighteenth-century fiction.

Becomes:

ENGL 2773 EIGHTEENTH-CENTURY FICTION

This course will introduce students to tales and novels written in Britain from the 1680s to the 1790s.

Change in calendar description and course title:

ENGL 2393 18th-CENTURY LITERATURE

This course will introduce students to an eclectic mixture of poetry, plays, and prose fiction by both women and men from 1730 to 1789.

Becomes:

ENGL 2393 LATER EIGHTEENTH-CENTURY LITERATURE

This course will introduce students to British literature and culture of the period 1730 to 1800.

Change in calendar description:

ENGL 3073 THEORY

An advanced course in influential twentieth-century theories of literature and culture. These theories will be studied and discussed with reference to the history of theoretical thought and may include formalism, dialogism, psychoanalysis, structuralism, feminism, cultural studies, new historicism, post-structuralism, gender studies, post-colonialism.

Becomes:

ENGL 3073 THEORY

An advanced course in influential twentieth-century **and contemporary** theories of literature and culture. These theories will be studied and discussed with reference to the history of theoretical thought and may include formalism, dialogism, psychoanalysis, structuralism, feminism, cultural studies, new historicism, **poststructuralism**, gender studies, **postcolonialism**, **sexuality studies**, **and queer studies**.

Change in calendar description:

ENGL 3753 STUDIES IN THE SHORT STORY

A critical study of short story composites in the twentieth century.

Becomes:

ENGL 3753 STUDIES IN THE SHORT STORY

This course will introduce students to the short story written in English.

Change in calendar description, course title, and pre requisites:

THEA 2803 ART OF THE FILM 1

An introduction to narrative film: its grammar and technique, theory, history and aesthetic development. Work is focused on the study of films that are seminal in the development of the cinema or representative of that development, as well as selected critical and theoretical writings. Prereq: second year standing Becomes:

THEA 2803 TOPICS IN FILM

An introduction to the language and critical vocabulary of narrative and non-narrative film. Mandatory weekly screenings outside of class time. Prereq: ENGL 1406 or ENGL 1413/1423

(ENGL 1406 or 1413/1423 has been added as a prerequisite for all upper level academic Theatre courses providing students with a solid background in English to better prepare them for upper level courses)

Change in calendar description, course title and pre requisites:

THEA 2813 ART OF THE FILM 2

An introduction to narrative film: its grammar and technique, theory, history and aesthetic development. Work is focused on the study of films that are seminal in the development of the cinema or representative of that development, as well as selected critical and theoretical writings. Prereq: second year standing Becomes:

THEA 2813 ADVANCED TOPICS IN FILM

Advanced study of the formal and stylistic systems of narrative and non-narrative film. Mandatory weekly screenings outside of class time. Prereq: THEA 2803 or permission of the instructor.

Change in calendar description:

THEA 2823 INTRO TO PRODUCTION 1

An introduction to production in the theatre. Basic production elements and procedures will be examined with emphasis on stage management, sets and properties. This course includes practical work to develop basic skills in the theatre.

Becomes:

THEA 2823 INTRO TO PRODUCTION 1

An introduction to production in the theatre. Basic production elements and procedures will be examined including theatre forms and stage management and two of the following - sets, scenic painting, properties, lighting, sound and costumes. This course includes classroom and practical, physical work in the theatre to develop basic skills. Clothing appropriate for work and safety is necessary. Open to non-majors.

Change in calendar description:

THEA 2833 INTRO TO PRODUCTION 2

An introduction to production in the theatre. Basic production elements and procedures will be examined with emphasis on costume, lights and sound. This course includes practical work to develop basic skills in the theatre. Prereq: Thea 2823

Becomes:

THEA 2833 INTRO TO PRODUCTION 2

An introduction to production in the theatre. Continuing from THEA 2823. Basic production elements and procedures will be examined from four of the following - sets, scenic painting, properties, lighting, sound and costumes. This course includes classroom and practical, physical work in the theatre to develop basic skills. Clothing appropriate for work and safety is necessary. Prereq: THEA 2823

Change in calendar description and pre requisite:

THEA 2853 THEATRE MOVEMENT 1

The first half of an introductory movement course. Much of the course work is geared to developing body awareness, alignment, strength and flexibility. Emphasis will also be placed on development of physical skills, awakening creativity and expanding range of expression. Prereq: Thea 1023 or permission of the instructor Becomes:

THEA 2853 THEATRE MOVEMENT 1

This is an Introductory Movement course. Course work will be geared to developing body awareness, strength and flexibility, and physical skills. Emphasis will also be placed on: creativity, expanding movement range and improvisation/exploration in preparation for performance work. Prereq THEA 1483 or permission of the instructor

Change in calendar description and pre requisite:

THEA 2863 THEATRE MOVEMENT 2

The second half of an introductory movement course. Much of the course work is geared to developing body awareness, alignment, strength and flexibility. Emphasis will also be placed on development of physical skills, awakening creativity and expanding range of expression. Prereq: Thea 2853

Becomes:

THEA 2863 THEATRE MOVEMENT 2

This is the second half of an Introductory Movement course. There will be continued development of body awareness, strength and flexibility, movement vocabulary, and creative use of physicality. Selected dance styles will be introduced as required. Prereq: THEA 2853 or permission of the instructor.

Change in pre requisite:

THEA 2883 THEATRE HISTORY: ORIGINS TO SHAKESPEARE

An examination of the relationship of social environment to the theatrical practice and dramatic literature which developed in various western cultures from pre-Greek origins to the late Renaissance.

Becomes:

THEA 2883 THEATRE HISTORY: ORIGINS TO SHAKESPEARE

An examination of the relationship of social environment to the theatrical practice and dramatic literature which developed in various western cultures from pre-Greek origins to the late Renaissance. Prereq: ENGL 1406 or 1413/1423.

Change in pre requisite:

THEA 2893 THEATRE HISTORY: RESTORATION ENGLAND TO 20TH C

Continuing examination into the relationship of social environment to the theatrical practice and dramatic literature which developed in various western cultures from the late 17th century to the late 20th century. Becomes:

THEA 2893 THEATRE HISTORY: RESTORATION ENGLAND TO 20TH C

Continuing examination into the relationship of social environment to the theatrical practice and dramatic literature which developed in various western cultures from the late 17th century to the late 20th century. Prereq: ENGL 1406 or 1413/1423

Change in pre requisite:

THEA 3133 PLAYWRITING

The processes and functions of dramaturgy will be examined in both a practical and theoretical context. Students will learn how to apply critical discourse to text analysis, performance and theatre systems in a manner which reflects the practical needs and working etiquette of the theatre. Dramaturges will be assigned to work in the Acadia Theatre Company's productions. Prereq: Thea 1483/1493 or Thea 1013/1023; for non-majors, Engl 1406 or 1413/1423

Becomes:

THEA 3133 PLAYWRITING

The processes and functions of dramaturgy will be examined in both a practical and theoretical context. Students will learn how to apply critical discourse to text analysis, performance and theatre systems in a manner which reflects the practical needs and working etiquette of the theatre. Dramaturges will be assigned to work in the Acadia Theatre Company's productions. Prereq: THEA 1483/1493 and ENGL 1406 or 1413/1423; for non-majors, ENGL1406 or 1413/1423

Change in pre requisite:

THEA 3243 DRAMATURGY

The processes and functions of dramaturgy will be examined in both a practical and theoretical context. Students will learn how to apply critical discourse to text analysis, performance and theatre systems in a manner which reflects the practical needs and working etiquette of the theatre. Dramaturges will be assigned to work in the Acadia Theatre Company's productions. Prereq: Thea 1483/1493 or Thea 1013/1023; for non-majors, Engl 1406 or 1413/1423

Becomes:

THEA 3243 DRAMATURGY

The processes and functions of dramaturgy will be examined in both a practical and theoretical context. Students will learn how to apply critical discourse to text analysis, performance and theatre systems in a manner which reflects the practical needs and working etiquette of the theatre. Dramaturges will be assigned to work in the Acadia Theatre Company's productions. Prereq: Engl 1406 or 1413/1423 and Thea 1483/1493; for non-majors, Engl 1406 or 1413/1423

Change in pre requisite:

THEA 3313 ACTING AND PERFORMANCE 3

Intermediate development and training in performance and acting. Prereq: THEA 2223 or permission of the Theatre Faculty.

Becomes:

THEA 3313 ACTING AND PERFORMANCE 3

Intermediate development and training in performance and acting. Prereq: THEA 2223 or permission of the instructor.

Change in pre requisite:

THEA 3323 ACTING AND PERFORMANCE 4

Continued intermediate development and training in performance and acting. Prereq: Thea 3313

Becomes:

THEA 3323 ACTING AND PERFORMANCE 4

Continued intermediate development and training in performance and acting. Prereq: THEA 3313 or permission of the instructor.

Change in calendar description:

THEA 3853 THEATRE MOVEMENT 3

The first half of an intermediate movement course which develops a fuller range of physical and emotional expression, along with ease and fluency. It may also touch on contemporary movement and creative process.

Prereq: Thea 2863

Becomes:

THEA 3853 THEATRE MOVEMENT 3

An intermediate course with focus on understanding of body mechanics, breaking habits and use of environment along with dance technique. Much of the course work is geared to developing greater movement vocabulary, along with ease and fluency. The goal is to achieve the fullest possible range of physical and emotional expression, and to know how to apply this to performance. Prereq: THEA 2863

Change in calendar description:

THEA 3863 THEATRE MOVEMENT 4

The second half of an intermediate movement course which develops a fuller range of physical and emotional expression, along with ease and fluency. It may also touch on contemporary movement and creative process.

Prereq: Thea 3853

Becomes:

THEA 3863 THEATRE MOVEMENT 4

This final Movement course focuses on integration of movement skills from other levels. Students will continue developing movement vocabulary and dance styles, and be introduced to different approaches to composition, and the creative process. The goal is to integrate physical and emotional expression in the body, and to be able to put together coherent original work. Prereq: THEA 3853

Change in pre requisite:

THEA 3923 CANADIAN DRAMA AND FILM

Contemporary theory and practice: an exploration of dramatic and cinematic aesthetics using contemporary Canadian texts and films.

Becomes:

THEA 3923 CANADIAN DRAMA AND FILM

Contemporary theory and practice: an exploration of dramatic and cinematic aesthetics using contemporary Canadian texts and films. Prereq: ENGL 1406 or 1413/1423

Change in calendar description and pre requisite:

THEA 3973 WOMEN AND THEATRE

An historical survey of women working in and for the theatre as performers, actor-managers, playwrights, critics, directors, designers and producers. The reading material includes a range of works from Aphra Behn and Eva La Gallienne to Caryl Churchill and Ann-Marie Macdonald. Various theoretical and historical issues will be raised as they become relevant to our exploration. Prereq: second year standing

Becomes:

THEA 3973 WOMEN AND THEATRE

An historical survey of women working in and for the theatre as performers, playwrights, directors and designers. Prereq: ENGL 1406 or 1413/1423.

Change in calendar description and pre requisite:

THEA 4013 SPECIAL TOPICS IN THEATRE 1

Studies in acting, directing, design, stage management, playwriting, dramaturgy or research. Prereq: permission of the department

Becomes:

THEA 4013 SPECIAL TOPICS IN THEATRE 1

Studies in acting, directing, design, stage management, playwriting, dramaturgy, research, or specialist movement. Prereq: ENGL 1406 or 1413/1423 and permission of the Theatre faculty

Change in calendar description and pre requisite:

THEA 4023 SPECIAL TOPICS IN THEATRE 2

Independent study in acting, directing, design, stage management playwriting, dramaturgy or research. Prereq: permission of the department

Becomes:

THEA 4023 SPECIAL TOPICS IN THEATRE 2

Independent study in acting, directing, design, stage management playwriting, dramaturgy, research or specialist movement. Prereq: ENGL 1406 or 1413/1423 and permission of the Theatre faculty

Change in pre requisite:

THEA 4413 ACTING AND PERFORMANCE 5

Advanced techniques and development in training for performance and acting. Prereq: Thea 3323 or permission of the Theatre faculty

Becomes:

THEA 4413 ACTING AND PERFORMANCE 5

Advanced techniques and development in training for performance and acting. Prereq: Thea 3323, Thea major or permission of the instructor.

Change in pre requisite:

THEA 4423 ACTING AND PERFORMANCE 6

Continued advanced techniques and development in training for performance and acting. Prereq: Thea 4413 Becomes:

THEA 4423 ACTING AND PERFORMANCE 6

Continued advanced techniques and development in training for performance and acting. Prereq: Thea 4413, Theatre Major or permission of the instructor.

Change in pre requisite:

THEA 4833 PLATO TO SCHILLER

Western theatrical theory and criticism from ancient Greece to the Romantic period.

Before:

THEA 4833 PLATO TO SCHILLER

Western theatrical theory and criticism from ancient Greece to the Romantic period. Prereq: ENGL 1406 or 1413/1423.

Change in pre requisite:

THEA 4843 NATURALISM TO THE OPPRESSED

Western theatrical theory and criticism from the late 19th century to the late 20th century.

Becomes:

THEA 4843 NATURALISM TO THE OPPRESSED

Western theatrical theory and criticism from the late 19th century to the late 20th century. Prereq: ENGL 1406 or 1413/1423.

Course deletions:

THEA 4813 THEATRE PRODUCTION FOR SECONDARY SCHOOLS

THEA 4823 DESIGN AND STAGECRAFT FOR SECONDARY SCHOOLS

New Course:

THEA 4313 PERFORMED VIOLENCE 1

Unarmed and non-bladed techniques in the illusion of violence for performance, at an internationally recognized certification level. Prereq: Permission of the instructor

New Course:

THEA 4323 PERFORMED VIOLENCE 2

Bladed techniques in the illusion of violence for performance, at an internationally recognized certification level. Prereq: THEA 4813

History and Classics

New course:

HIST 2593 HISTORY OF CANADA'S FIRST NATIONS

This survey course examines the cultures, economies and politics of Canada's indigenous peoples before and since the Contact period. Particular attention is paid to social structures, the impacts of contact and the resilience of aboriginal cultures within an industrialized, Western nation.

New course:

HIST 4233 SPECIAL TOPICS

Course deletion:

HIST 2583 HISTORY OF INDIGENOUS PEOPLES: POST -COLONIAL PERIOD

Change in course title:

HIST 3613 MAKING CANADA: A NATION OF IMMMIGRANTS

Since the time of first contact, Canada has been peopled by diverse groups of newcomers whose expectations of their new land were often at odds with their settlement experience. This course looks at a variety of immigrant groups, examining their efforts to settle here, and the ways 'Canadian' society and culture were transformed by their presence. Prereq: Hist 2783

Becomes:

HIST 3613 CANADIAN IMMIGRATION HISTORY

Since the time of first contact, Canada has been peopled by diverse groups of newcomers whose expectations of their new land were often at odds with their settlement experience. This course looks at a variety of immigrant groups, examining their efforts to settle here, and the ways 'Canadian' society and culture were transformed by their presence. Prereq: Hist 2783

Program modification:

(Under the heading "Bachelor of Arts with Honours in History) 18h at the 4000-level and including 4903 and 4996.

Becomes:

15h at the 4000-level and including 4903 and 4996. Similar re-wording under the heading Bachelor of Arts with Double Major in History.

Languages and Literatures

Course deletion:

FRAN 3353: FILM, FRANCE, FRANCOPHONIE

Program modification:

Program of Proficiency in German: The goal of this program is to provide students with an internationally recognized language certificate in German. Upon successful completion of their examination students will have achieved the language prerequisite to study at universities in a German Speaking country. Germ 1013, 1023, 2013, 2023, 2513, 2523, 3013, 3023, plus a comprehensive examination. Three levels of examination are available:

- 1. Zertifikat Deutsch (level three B1) on the six-level scale of competence as defined by the Common European Framework of Reference for Languages;
- 2. Goethe Zertifikat (B2), level four on CEFR scale;
- 3. Test Deutsch als Fremdsprache (B2/C1), the language certification that facilitates university admission and is recognized by every university in Germany.

Proficiency programme requirements: Germ 1013, 1023, 2013, 2023, 2513, 2523, 3013, 3023, plus a comprehensive examination.

New course:

IDST 3473 INTRODUCTION TO CONTEMPORARY FRENCH, GERMAN AND SPANISH FILM

A multi-disciplinary course covering developments in French, German and Spanish film as well as the theories shaping them, with a focus on literary adaptations. The course will be offered in English. Students wishing to count this course towards a major in a language will be required to write their assignments and essays in the language of that major.

Program modification:

Bachelor of Arts with Major in Spanish: Span 1013, 1023, 2013, 2023, 2113, 2123, 24h Spanish electives at the 3000 or 4000 level (Span 3103/3203 or equivalent is required.

Becomes:

Bachelor of Arts with Major in Spanish: Span 1023, 2013, 2023, 2113, 2123 and either 2513 or 2523, 24h of Spanish courses at the 3000 or 4000 level that include SPAN 3103/3203 (or equivalent), 3h of Spanish literature, 3h of Spanish American literature, 3h of either Spanish or Spanish American culture (whichever was not taken at the 2000 level), 3h of translation and three other 3h courses chosen in consultation with the department. (42h)

Bachelor of Business Administration with a Major in Spanish: Span 1013, 1023, 2013, 2023, 2113, 2123, 24h Spanish electives at the 3000 or 4000 level (Span 3103/3203 or equivalent is required. (42h) See entry for the School of Business.

Becomes:

Bachelor of Business Administration with a Major in Spanish: Span 1023, 2013, 2023, 2113, 2123 and either 2513 or 2523, 24h of Spanish courses at the 3000 or 4000 level that include SPAN 3103/3203 (or equivalent), 3h of Spanish literature, 3h of Spanish American literature, 3h of either Spanish or Spanish American culture (whichever was not taken at the 2000 level), 3h of translation and three other 3h courses chosen in consultation with the department. (42h) See entry for the School of Business.

Bachelor of Arts with Spanish as a Second Major: Span 1013, 1023, 2013, 2023, 2113, 2123, 24h Spanish electives at the 3000 or 4000 level (Span 3103/3203 or equivalent is required) (42h) Becomes:

Bachelor of Arts with Spanish as a Second Major: Span 1023, 2013, 2023, 2113, 2123 and either 2513 or 2523, 24h of Spanish courses at the 3000 or 4000 level that include SPAN 3103/3203 (or equivalent), 3h of Spanish literature, 3h of Spanish American literature, 3h of either Spanish or Spanish American culture (whichever was not taken at the 2000 level), 3h of translation and three other 3h courses chosen in consultation with the department. (42h)

Change in calendar description:

SPAN 2513 HISPANIC CIVILIZATION AND CULTURE: SPAIN

There is currently no description of this course; just a title, listed at the end of the Spanish course offerings as a course that may be given.

Becomes:

SPAN 2513 HISPANIC CIVILIZATION AND CULTURE: SPAIN

This course will develop your understanding of present-day Peninsular Spanish culture and society in the light of its historical development. It is also designed to develop command of written and oral Spanish and communication skills. This course is intended for majors and as an elective for non-majors in Spanish. Prerequisite: SPAN 2013 or permission of the department.

Change in calendar description:

SPAN 2523 HISPANIC CIVILIZATION AND CULTURE: SPANISH AMERICA

[Given in English]

An overview of Spanish America covering pre-Columbian civilizations, major historical movements, and political, social and economic developments with emphasis on Mexico, Central America, Venezuela, Peru and Argentina in the twentieth century. The objective is an understanding of present-day Spanish American culture and society.

Becomes:

SPAN 2523 HISPANIC CIVILIZATIONAND CULTURE: SPANISH AMERICA

An overview of Spanish America beginning with pre-Columbian civilizations and covering major historical, political, social and economic developments, with an emphasis on the twentieth century and on present-day Spanish American culture and society. Development of written Spanish and communication skills. Intended for majors and as an elective for non-majors in Spanish. Prerequisite: SPAN 2013 or permission of the department.

Change in calendar description:

SPAN 3103/3203 ADVANCED GRAMMAR AND CONVERSATION 1/2

Prereg 3103: Span 2013, 2023, or permission of dept.

Prereq 3203: Span 3103 or permission of dept.

Review of structural material, composition, translation and oral practice. Emphasis in placed on student interaction and exchange of ideas. Oral and written exercise and class presentations.

Becomes:

SPAN 3103/3203 ADVANCED GRAMMAR AND CONVERSATION 1/2

Prereg 3103: Span 2013, 2023 or permission of the department.

Prereq 3203: Span 3103 or permission of the department

Grammar review, composition, translation and oral practice based on literary readings of Spanish and Spanish American authors. Linguistic registers and regional dialects are discussed with reference to vocabulary building in formal and colloquial contexts. Written exercises and assignments based on the texts studied are required. Emphasis is placed on student interaction and exchange of ideas.

Sociology

Change in calendar description and pre requisite:

SOCI 3433 ETHNOGRAPHY: WRITING CULTURES

An ethnographic (ethnos Greek for 'nation' or culture, graphy used to refer to the writing of) investigation of a particular culture or region of the world. Focus is on the description, interpretation and analysis of experience to draw relevant comparisons between ourselves and others to foster understanding and better communication. Becomes:

SOCI 3433 ETHNOGRAPHY: WRITING CULTURES

An ethnographic (ethnos Greek for 'nation' or culture, graphy used to refer to the writing of) investigation of a particular culture or region of the world. Focus is on the description, interpretation and analysis of experience to draw relevant comparisons between ourselves and others to foster understanding and better communication. Writing ethnography is an important component of the course. Prerequisite: SOCI 2003 and 2013 or equivalent; restricted to sociology majors, third year standing.

Change in course number and pre requisites:

(courses at the 3000 level require 12 hr sociology as pre requisite, courses at the 2000 level require 6 hrs).

SOCI 3613 SOCIOLOGY OF EDUCATION

The role of schooling in society with particular focus on who gets what type and amount of schooling, the formal and informal workings of school systems and cultures, the social consequences of schooling, and progressive education.

Becomes:

SOCI 2553 SOCIOLOGY OF EDUCATION

The role of schooling in society with particular focus on who gets what type and amount of schooling, the formal and informal workings of school systems and cultures, the social consequences of schooling, and progressive education.

Program modification:

Add **SOC3433** to the list of courses that count towards the Methods requirement at the 3rd year. This change will give Honours, Major and Double Major students another course to choose from to fulfil their methods requirements.

Sociology is a field of study that involves careful inquiry into the activities of individuals and groups within human societies. The discipline seeks to gain a reasoned understanding of the patterned relationships that make up societies. Most courses emphasize the analysis of our Canadian context and the use of Canadian resources. The department's concern is with the kind of educational experience which will enable continued analysis and understanding of social phenomena beyond the immediacy of the university experience.

• Students wishing to transfer to the sociology major must have a grade point average of 2.0. The department offers seven areas of study within the discipline. Students wishing to deepen their understanding of a topic should choose courses within a given field. The areas of strength are:

Anthropology: 1106, 1113, 2113, 2533, 2853, 3223, 3433, 3453, 4113 **Social research/methodology:** 2003, 2013, 3103, 3113, 3163, 4133 **Social theory:** 2103, 3013, 3033, 3043, 3053, 3093, 4143, Wgst 3023 **Political economy/development:** 2113, 2533, 3253, 3523, 4123

Work and occupations: 2223, 2253, 3253, 4153

Gender and feminism: 2363, 2043, 2853, 3253, 3403, 3803, 4163, Wgst 2906,

Criminology: 2713, 2723, 2753, 3703, 3733, 3743, 4183 **Culture and Media:** 2243, 2533, 3033, 3553, 4113

Bachelor of Arts with Honours in Sociology: 6h from Soci 1006, 1106, or two of

1013/1023/1033/1113 (only 6h from 1006/1013/1033; only 6h from 1106/1023/1113); 2003 and

2013; 2103; 3013, one of 3033, 3043, 3093, Wgst 3023; one of 3103, 3113, 3163, **3433**; 4003; one of 4113, 4123, 4133, 4143, 4153, 4163, 4173, 4183 or 4193; 4996 and 24h additional sociology (60h), no more than 6 hours at the 1000 level; up to 6h Idst may be counted as Sociology credits).

Bachelor of Arts with Honours in Sociology with 2nd Major: 6h from Soci 1006, 1106, or two of 1013/1023/1033/1113 (only 6h from 1006/1013/1033; only 6h from 1106/1023/1113); 2003 and 2013; 2103; 3013, one of 3033, 3043, 3093, Wgst 3023; one of 3103, 3113, 3163, **3433**; 4003; one of 4113, 4123, 4133, 4143, 4153, 4163, 4173, 4183 or 4193; 4996 and 18h additional sociology (54h), no more than 6 hours at the 1000 level.

Bachelor of Arts with Major in Sociology: 6h from Soci 1006, 1106 or two of

1013/1023/1033/1113 (only 6h from 1006/1013/1033; only 6h from 1106/1023/1113); 2003 and 2013; 2103; one of 3013, 3033, 3043, 3093, Wgst 3023; one of Soci 3103, 3113, 3163, **3433**; 4413; and 24h additional sociology (48h), no more than 6 hours at the 1000 level.

Bachelor of Arts with Double Major in Sociology: 6h from Soci 1006, 1106 or two of 1013/1023/1033/1113 (only 6h from 1006/1013/1033; only 6h from 1106/1023/1113); 2003 and 2013; 2103; one of 3013, 3033, 3043, 3093, Wgst 3023; one of Soci 3103, 3113, 3163, **3433**; 4413; and 18h additional sociology (42h), no more than 6 hours at the 1000 level. Co-op option available – see program description on page 44.

Women's and Gender Studies

New course:

WGST 2913 GLOBAL WOMEN'S MOVEMENTS

The course will focus on women's movements around the globe. Using historical and contemporary case studies, we will explore what leads women to mobilize, the resources that help or hinder these movements, and the conditions of women's lives that spark action for social change. Cases will cover a diversity of regions and issues (such as religion, politics, health, and labour).

Program modification:

The addition of Wgst 2913 as an option in the list of required hours for the major.

Women's and Gender Studies emphasizes gender as a criterion of analysis in areas such as scholarly activity, social relations, cultural expression, and politics. Students are encouraged to develop critical analyses of established theoretical frameworks, institutions, ideologies, history, identity, science, language and culture while exploring feminist alternatives. Students should note that some of the courses have prerequisites within their individual departments.

Bachelor of Arts with Major in Women's and Gender Studies

- 1. The arts core (30h)
- 2. 42h of Women's and Gender studies courses including Wgst 1413; Wgst 2906 or 2913; Wgst, 3023; at least 12h of

the courses must be at the 3000/4000 level

- 3. 24h to satisfy minor requirements
- 4. Electives to complete a total of 120h

Bachelor of Arts with Honours in Women's and Gender Studies

- 1. The arts core (30 h)
- 2. 48h of Women's and Gender studies courses including Wgst 1413; Wgst 2906 or 2913; Wgst 3023; Wgst 1413, 2906, 3023; at least 12h of the courses must be at the 3000 level
- 3. One of: Soci 2003 or Crel 3123
- 4. 6h at the 4000-level and 4996 (thesis)
- 5. 24h to satisfy minor requirements
- 6. Electives to complete a total of 120h

Women's and Gender Studies as a Second Major: Wgst 1413; Wgst 2906 or 2913; Wgst 3023; Wgst 1413, 2906; 3023; 24h from the Women's and Gender Studies option courses. (36h)

Women's and Gender Studies as a Minor: A minor in Women's and Gender Studies consists of 24h, including the three required courses of the program. With the exception of Idst or Wgst courses, no more than 12h can be in a single discipline. Some upper-level courses have prerequisites. See the relevant listing under "Multidisciplinary Minors" at www.arts.acadiau.ca or check the Women's and Gender Studies website at http://womenstudies.acadiau.ca

Women's and Gender Studies Courses:

Wgst 1413; Wgst 2906 or 2913; and Wgst 3023; Wgst 1413, 2906, and 3023 are required. Art 3513, Busi 3753, Clas 2663, 3123, 3443, Crel 2533, 2553, 3123, Econ 3883, Educ 4633, Engl 3553, 3833, 3843, 3983, Fran 3203, Hist 2123, 2133, 2263, 2553, 3393, 3493, 3543, 3643, Idst 3123, Kine 3353, Nutr 1513, Phil 2233, Pols 3013, 3513, 4883, Psyc 2163, 2183, Soci 2323, 2343 2363, 2403, 2633, 2853, 3253, 3403, 3803, 4163, Thea 3973, Wgst 3123, 3503

Faculty of Professional Studies:

School of Business

Program modification:

The proposed change is to add a course selection (COMM 1223 Communication 2) to the business-related electives available to students wishing to complete a **BBA with Major in Employment Relations**. category 4 in the calendar description:

15h business electives chosen from the following courses in management and related disciplines: Busi 3483, 3623, 3723, 3733, 3753, 3763, 4323, 4633,4933/4943, **COMM 1223** (or alternatives approved by the Business school).

Change in pre requisite:

BUSI 3233 INTERNATIONAL FINANCE

This course develops ability to understand and analyze issues in financial management in an international context. Emphasis is on decision-making skills in international capital markets and the financial function in the multinational corporation. Prereq: Busi 2233 with a C- or better Becomes:

BUSI 3233 INTERNATIONAL FINANCE

This course develops ability to understand and analyze issues in financial management in an international context. Emphasis is on decision-making skills in international capital markets and the financial function in the multinational corporation. Prereq: Busi 2233 with a C- or better, **Busi 3273 or Busi 3243**.

Change in title and course description:

BUSI 3253 PERSONAL FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT FOR BUSINESS STUDENTS

This course develops the principles upon which the sound management of personal financial resources are based. Emphasis is placed on the understanding, mathematical analysis and evaluation of financial products and strategies. Issues related to the providing of advice in the context of the financial services industry are also discussed. Prereq: Busi 2223 with C- or better

Becomes:

BUSI 3253 PERSONAL FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This course develops the principles upon which the sound management of personal financial resources are based. Emphasis is placed on the understanding, mathematical analysis and evaluation of financial products and strategies within the context of the Canadian banking and taxation systems. Issues related to providing advice in the context of the financial services industry are emphasized. Prereq: Busi 2223 with C- or better

Change in title, course description and pre requisite:

BUSI4433 MARKETING CHANNELS

This course examines how organizations manage their channels of distribution to successfully achieve their marketing objectives. Students will gain an understanding of why manufacturers use marketing intermediaries and how these relationships can be managed to create the place utility demanded by their customers. Students will explore topics such as retailing, logistics, franchising, disintermediation, and supple chain management. Prereq: Busi 2433, 2513 with a C- or better

Becomes:

BUSI 4433 DIGITAL MARKETING

This course builds on BUSI 2423 and BUSI 2433 as it applies and adapts traditional marketing strategy and actions to a digital context, examining the integration of digital marketing as a vital component of overall marketing strategy. Students will learn to evaluate website effectiveness, use search engines efficiently, create effectual social media strategies, and the basics of viral marketing. Prereq: BUSI 2433 with C- or better

Recreation Management and Kinesiology

Program modification:

To change the current GPA 2.5 requirement in the kinesiology core and implement a B- requirement in the kinesiology core and communication core courses.

Bachelor of Kinesiology with Honours

- Kinesiology core (45h)
- Comm 1213 (3h)
- Arts/Science core: Math 1213, 6h from the Faculty of Arts, 6h from the Faculty of Pure and Applied Science, 12h from the Faculty of Arts or Faculty of Pure and Applied Science (27h)
- Kine 3163 (3h)
- Kine 4996 Thesis (6h)
- Kinesiology electives (12h)
- University electives 24h (15h of which must be outside Kine or SRMK)
- Kine 1100, 3100
- At least 50% of the Kine electives offered for the degree must be at the 3000 level or higher.
- Grades of B- or better are required in the kinesiology and communication core. A GPA of 3.00 must be obtained in the kinesiology and communication core. A minimum program GPA of 3.00 is required to graduate.

Program modification:

To change the current GPA 2.5 requirement in the kinesiology core and implement a C- requirement in the kinesiology core and communication core courses.

Bachelor of Kinesiology

- Kinesiology core (45h)
- Comm 1213 (3h)
- Arts/Science core: Math 1213, 6h from the Faculty of Arts, 6h from the Faculty of Pure and Applied Science, 12h from the Faculty of Arts or Faculty of Pure and Applied Science (27h)

- Kinesiology electives (21h)
- University electives (24h, 15h of which must be outside Kine or SRMK)
- Kine 1100, 3100
- At least 50% of the Kine electives offered for the degree must be at the 3000 level or higher.
- Grades of C- or better are required in the kinesiology and communication core. A minimum program GPA of 2.00 is required to be eligible to graduate

Modification of BRM and BRMH programs:

The BRM degree is reconfigured to reflect the strengths of faculty anticipated to remain in the Recreation Management and Community Development program over the next few years, and respond to key developments in the profession over the past two decades and for the foreseeable future. The new configuration will prepare students for the twenty-first century and the expected professional demands made of graduates focusing on society's pressing concerns for sustainable recreation management, environmental and sustainability education, community development, and sustainable tourism management.

Courses in Leisure Studies Core: Recr 1213, 1253, 1263, 2013, 2113, 2513, 2523, 3033, 4006, 4033, 4043, 4213, plus 6h from Recr 1163, 1223, 1233, 1243 or Kine 2293 (45h) Becomes:

Courses in the Recreation Management and Community Development Core: (39h) Recr 1163, 1253, 1263 (or Kine 3133), 2033, 2513, 2523, 3573, 4006, 4033, 4043, 4213, and Comm 1213.

Courses in Recreation Management and Community Development Electives: (12h). Choose from Recreation Management and Community Development electives plus Kine 176D, 180D, 181D, 182D, 184D,185D, 185H, 276D, 280D, 280S, 281D, 282D, 2293, ECON 3733, 3743, HIST 2283,

With the written approval of their academic advisor, students may design a cluster of courses selected from throughout the University to represent an area of emphasis that complements and enriches the focus of their major in Recreation Management and Community Development. Clusters can, for example, focus on environmental and resource management, entrepreneurship, the aged, ethnic groups, health, food security, the poor, people with disabilities, youth, policy and law, theoretical concepts of the recreation experience, physically active living, etc.

Courses in the Liberal Education Core: 27h of arts or science courses taken at the direction of the School.

Becomes

Courses in the Liberal Education Core: arts or science courses taken at the direction of the School.

Core Term and Professional Placement

During the first eight weeks of the 4th year winter semester, all program majors will take Recr 4043 (Professional Issues), Recr 4033 (Global Issues) and Recr 4213 (Policy Planning and Decision-Making), which are taught as a block integrated experience. This block has a broad theme of Sustainable, Healthy Communities and will include a major community engagement and learning project. Students will choose between one of several projects. The final six weeks of the term students will complete Recr 4006 (Professional Placement). This will be a full-time professional placement in a community setting, followed by a mandatory reflection workshop and a retreat at the end of the term. The placement will be developed based on individual student interests. Students must have a 4th year standing for entrance into the core term.

Becomes:

Core Term and Professional Placement

During the first eight weeks of the 4th year winter semester, all program majors will take Recr 4043 (Professional Issues), Recr 4033 (Global Issues) and Recr 4213 (Policy Planning and Decision-Making), which are taught as a block integrated experience. This block has a broad theme of Sustainable, Healthy Communities and will include a major community engagement and learning project. Students will choose between one of a number of projects. The final six weeks of the term students will complete Recr 4006 (Professional Placement). This will be a full-time non-paid professional placement in a community setting, followed by a mandatory reflection workshop and a retreat at the end of the term. The placement will be developed based on individual student interests.

Bachelor of Recreation Management

Leisure studies core (45h)

Management core (18h)

Liberal education core (27h)

Comm 1213 (3h)

Electives at the direction of the School to represent an area of study (27h)

Non-credit requirements: Recr 1210, 2020, 4010. Recr 1210 and 2020 must be completed during the first year in the program.

Students must successfully complete all RECR courses in the 1000, 2000, and 3000 levels to enter the core term or permission of the school.

Grades of C- or better are required in the leisure studies core, the management core, and Comm 1213.

A minimum program GPA of 2.00 is required to be eligible to graduate.

Becomes:

Bachelor of Recreation Management

- Recreation Management and Community Development core (39h)
- Recreation Management and Community Development Electives (12h)
- Management core (18h)
- Liberal education core (27h)
- Electives at the direction of the School to represent an area of study (24h)
- Non-credit requirements: Recr 1100 and 3100. Recr 1100 must be completed during the first year in the program.
- Students must successfully complete all RECR courses in the 1000, 2000, and 3000 levels and must have a 4th year standing for entrance into the core term or permission of the school.
- Grades of C- or better are required in the Recreation Management and Community Development core and the Management core.
- A minimum program GPA of 2.00 is required to be eligible to graduate.

Bachelor of Recreation Management with Honours

- Leisure studies core (45h)
- Management core (18h)
- Liberal education core (27h)
- Comm 1213 (3h)
- Recr 4996 Thesis (6h)
- Approved research course (3h)
- Approved electives to represent an area of study. (18h)
- Non-credit requirements: Recr 1210, 2020, 4010. Recr 1210 and 2020 must be completed during the first year in the program
- Students must successfully complete all RECR courses in the 1000, 2000, and 3000 levels to enter the core term or permission of the school.
- A GPA of 3.0 is required in the courses in the leisure studies core. Grades of C- or better are required in the management core and Comm 1213.

A minimum program GPA of 3.00 is required to be eligible to graduate in the honours program.

Becomes:

Bachelor of Recreation Management with Honours

- Recreation Management and Community Development core (39h)
- Recreation Management and Community Development Electives (12h).
- Management core (18h)
- Liberal education core (27h)
- Recr 4996 Thesis (6h)
- Approved research course (3h);
- Approved electives to represent an area of study. (15h)
- Non-credit requirements: Recr 1100 and 3100. Recr 1100 must be completed during the first year in the program.
- Students must successfully complete all RECR courses in the 1000, 2000, and 3000 and must have a 4th year standing for entrance into the core term or permission of the school.
- A GPA of 3.0 is required in the courses in the Recreation Management and Community Development core. Grades of C- or better are required in the management core.
- A minimum program GPA of 3.00 is required to be eligible to graduate in the honours program.

Bachelor of Recreation Management with Environment and Sustainability Studies:

- Leisure Studies core (45 h). Can only take one of Recr 2523 or Esst 3003, Recr 1263 or Esst 2003 based on advice of the school
- Management core (18 h)
- Communication courses: Comm 1213 (3 h)
- Electives at the direction of the school (27 h).
- Non-credit requirements: Recr 1210, 2020, 4010. Recr 1210 and 2020 must be completed during the first year of the program.
- Environment and Sustainability Studies Core Courses (12 h): Recr 1183 or Esst 1003, Recr 1263 or Esst 2003, Recr 2523 or Esst 3003, and Esst 4003. Credit cannot be obtained for both Esst 1003 and Recr 1183.
- Environment and Sustainability Studies Concentration Course (3 h) based on a choice of concentration area; Busi 2763, Esst 2013, Phil 2303 or Recr 2033.
- Environment and Sustainability Studies Concentration Courses based on a choice of concentration taken from concentration lists in the Environment and Sustainability Studies (12h)
- Students must successfully complete all RECR courses in the 1000, 2000, and 3000 levels to enter the core term or permission of the School.
- Grades of C- or better are required in the Leisure Studies Core, the Management Core and Comm 1213
- A minimum GPA of 2.00 is required to be eligible to graduate.

Becomes:

Bachelor of Recreation Management with Environment and Sustainability Studies:

- Recreation Management and Community Development core (39 h). Can only take one of Recr 2523 or Esst 3003, Recr 1263 or Esst 2003 based on advice of the school.
- Recreation Management and Community Development Electives core (12h)
- Management core (18 h)
- Environment and Sustainability Studies Core Courses (6 h): Recr 1183 or Esst 1003 and Esst 4003. Credit cannot be obtained for both Esst 1003 and Recr 1183.
- Environment and Sustainability Studies Concentration Course (3 h) based on a choice of concentration area; Busi 2763, Esst 2013, Phil 2303 or a course from the sustainable community concentration in addition to Recr 2033 (this is in the Recreation Management and Community Development core above).
- Environment and Sustainability Studies Concentration Courses based on a choice of concentration taken from concentration lists in the Environment and Sustainability Studies (12h)

Environment and Sustainability Studies Other Concentration Courses (9)

• Electives at the direction of the school (21 h).

- Non-credit requirements: Recr 1100 and 3100. Recr 1100 must be completed during the first year of the program.
- Students must successfully complete all RECR courses in the 1000, 2000, and 3000 levels and must have a 4th year standing for entrance into the core term or permission of the School.
- Grades of C- or better are required in the Recreation Management and Community Development Core and the Management Core.
- A minimum GPA of 2.00 is required to be eligible to graduate.

Bachelor of Recreation Management with Honours with Environment and Sustainability Studies:

- Leisure Studies core (45h). Can only take one of Recr 2523 or Esst 3003, Recr 1263 or Esst 2003 based on advice of the school. Recr 1163 is required as part of the Leisure Studies Core.
- Management core (18h)
- Communication course: Comm 1213 (3h)
- Honours Thesis, Recr 4996 (6h)
- Approved research course (3h)
- Electives at the direction of the school (18h)
- Non-credit requirements: Recr 1100, 1210, 3100. Recr 1100 and 1210 must be completed during the first year of the program.
- Environment and Sustainability Studies Core Courses (12h): Recr 1183 or Esst 1003, Recr 1263 or Esst 2003, Recr 2523 or Esst 3003, and Esst 4003. Credit cannot be obtained for both Esst 1003 and Recr 1183.
- Environment and Sustainability Studies Concentration Course (3h) based on a choice of concentration area; Busi 2763, Esst 2013, Phil 2303 or Recr 2033.
- Environment and Sustainability Studies Concentration Courses based on a choice of concentration taken from concentration lists in the Environment and Sustainability Studies (12h)
- Students must successfully complete all Recr courses in the 1000, 2000, and 3000 levels to enter the core term or permission of the School.
- Grades of C- or better are required in the Leisure Studies Core, the Management Core and Comm 1213.
- A minimum GPA of 3.00 is required to be eligible to graduate.

Recomes

Bachelor of Recreation Management with Honours with Environment and Sustainability Studies:

- •Recreation Management and Community Development core (39h). Can only take one of Recr 2523 or Esst 3003, Recr 1263 or Esst 2003 based on advice of the school.
- Recreation Management and Community Development Electives core (12h)
- Management core (18h)
- Honours Thesis, Recr 4996 (6h)
- Approved research course (3h)
- Environment and Sustainability Studies Core Courses (6h): Recr 1183 or Esst

1003, and Esst 4003. Credit cannot be obtained for both Esst 1003 and Recr 1183.

- Environment and Sustainability Studies Concentration Course (3h) based on a choice of concentration area; Busi 2763, Esst 2013, Phil 2303 or a course from the sustainable community concentration in addition to Recr 2033 (this is in the Recreation Management and Community Development core above)
- Environment and Sustainability Studies Concentration Courses based on a choice of concentration taken from concentration lists in the Environment and Sustainability Studies (12h)
- Environment and Sustainability Studies Other Concentration Courses (9)
- Electives at the direction of the school (12h)
- Non-credit requirements: Recr 1100 and 3100. Recr 1100 must be completed during the first year of the program.
- Students must successfully complete all Recr courses in the 1000, 2000, and 3000 levels and must have a 4th year standing for entrance into the core term or permission of the School.

- Grades of C- or better are required in the Recreation Management and Community Development Core and the Management Core.
- A minimum GPA of 3.00 is required to be eligible to graduate.

Bachelor of Recreation Management with Psychology

- Leisure studies core (45h)
- Management core (18h)
- Liberal education core (6h)
- Comm 1213 (3h)
- Psychology core: Psyc 1013 and Psyc 1023 (6h)
- Psychology electives courses: (15h)
- Electives at the direction of the School to represent an area of study (27h)
- Non-credit requirements: Recr 1100, 1210, 3100. Recr 1100 and 1210 must be completed during the first year in the program.
- Students must successfully complete all RECR courses in the 1000, 2000, and 3000 levels to enter the core term or permission of the school.
- Grades of C- or better are required in the leisure studies core, the management core, Comm 1213 and the psychology courses.

A minimum program GPA of 2.00 is required to be eligible to graduate Becomes:

Bachelor of Recreation Management with Psychology

- Recreation Management and Community Development core (39h)
- Recreation Management and Community Development Electives core (12h)
- Management core (18h)
- Liberal education core (6h)
- Psyc 1013, 1023, and 15 additional hours in Psychology (21h)
- Electives at the direction of the School to represent an area of study (24h)
- Non-credit requirements: Recr 1100 and 3100. Recr 1100 must be completed during the first year in the program.
- Students must successfully complete all RECR courses in the 1000, 2000, and 3000 levels and must have a 4th year standing for entrance into the core term or permission of the school.
- Grades of C- or better are required in the Recreation Management and Community Development core, the management core, and the psychology courses.
- A minimum program GPA of 2.00 is required to be eligible to graduate.

Bachelor of Recreation Management with Honours with Psychology

- Leisure studies core (45h)
- Management core (18h)
- Liberal education core (6h)
- Psychology core: Psyc 1013 and Psyc 1023 (6h)
- Psychology elective courses: (15h)
- Comm 1213 (3h)
- Recr 4996 Thesis (6h)
- Approved research course (3h)
- Approved electives to represent an area of study. (18h)
- Non-credit requirements: Recr 1100, 1210, 3100. Recr 1210 and 1100 must be completed during the first year in the program
- Students must successfully complete all RECR courses in the 1000, 2000, and 3000 levels to enter the core term or permission of the school.
- A GPA of 3.0 is required in the courses in the leisure studies core. Grades of C- or better are required in the management core, Comm 1213 and all psychology courses.
- A minimum program GPA of 3.00 is required to be eligible to graduate in the honours program.

Becomes:

Bachelor of Recreation Management with Honours with Psychology

- Recreation Management and Community Development core (39h)
- Recreation Management and Community Development Electives core (12h)
- Management core (18h)
- Liberal education core (6h)
- Psyc 1013, 1023, and 15 additional hours in Psychology (21h)
- Recr 4996 Thesis (6h)
- Approved research course (3h)
- Approved electives to represent an area of study. (15h)
- Non-credit requirements: Recr 1100 and 3100. Recr 1100 must be completed during the first year in the program
- Students must successfully complete all RECR courses in the 1000, 2000, and 3000

levels and must have a 4th year standing for entrance into the core term or permission of the school.

- A GPA of 3.0 is required in the courses in the Recreation Management Community Development core. Grades of C- or better are required in the management core, Comm 1213 and all psychology courses.
- A minimum program GPA of 3.00 is required to be eligible to graduate in the honours program.

New course:

This course and another practicum are being offered currently under the KINE 4293Health Promotion & Wellness Practicum. As both courses have evolved, it would be pedagogy and technically better to separate these two courses.

KINE 4193 EXERCISE AND TRAINING PRACTICUM

This course provides students an opportunity to apply course material from this area of study in practical settings. Students will be expected to work in diverse situations weekly to develop skills around laboratory fitness testing, developing exercise programs and directing personal training opportunities. Students will also complete a self-directed study toward preparation of theoretical and practical competencies. Prereq: KINE 3343, and permission of the instructor.

Course modification:

Change to the number of lab hours from 1.5h to 3h.

KINE 2033 **BIOMECHANICS 1** An introduction to the biomechanics of human movement, including kinematics and kinetics of the musculoskeletal system and mechanics of muscle contraction. Practical examples from sport, rehabilitation and the workplace will be discussed. The lab component will demonstrate these concepts and introduce methods used to quantify the mechanical aspect of human motion. (1.5h 3h lab) Prereq: Kine 1413 and 1513.

Faculty of Pure and Applied Science

Multidisciplinary Minors

In place of a minor in a single subject, B.Sc. (Major) and B.Sc. (Honours) students may complete an 18h multidisciplinary minor, subject to specific program requirements. Students interested in this option should discuss it with their academic advisor. Multidisciplinary minors include American Studies, Atlantic Canadian Studies, Canadian Studies, Comparative Religion, Cultural Studies, Diaspora Studies, International Development Studies, Environmental Studies, Legal Studies, Women's and Gender Studies, and World Literatures. Full details and course lists may be found on the Faculty of Science website: http://science.acadiau.ca/multidisc

Biology

Program modification

(up to two psychology courses to be used toward the major.)

BIOLOGY * Credit cannot be obtained for both Biol 1113/1123 and Biol 1813/1823. However, students who have taken 1813/1823 and are subsequently transferring to the biology major may use these as science electives. Completion of the Biology major/honours requires that students must take Biol 1113 and 1123, but these courses may be taken concurrently with upper level courses.

- * Major credit cannot be obtained for both Biol 3173/3183 and Biol 2823 although Biol 2823 can be used as a science elective. Biology majors usually take Biol 3173/3183.
- * Major credit is also given for Chem 2713, 3723, 4723, and Geol 2213, and for up to two Psychology courses from PSYC3053, 3083, 3133, 3323, 3383, and 4343.

Biology core: Biol 1113, 1123, 2013, 2043, 2053, and 2073 (18h). All biology Majors must take at least 6h in chemistry, preferably in the first year. A Minor in the areas of chemistry, physics, or geology must include at least 6h in a course which has a laboratory component to that course.

Bachelor of Science with Major in Biology (120h):

The biology core and an additional 30h or 27h or 24h biology depending upon the Minor (18h of which are to be at the 3000-4000 level **and include at least 3h from the biodiversity stream***). Math 2233, 2243 (6h); 6h chemistry, all with a minimum grade of C-

Biodiversity stream: BIOL 3013, 3073, 3113, 3123, 3243, 3293, 3373, 3843, 4113, 4123, 4153, 4163, 4213, 4543

Bachelor of Science with Honours in Biology (120h):

The biology core, Biol 4023 and 4996 (27h), and 21h additional biology (48h) (18h of which are to be at the 3000-4000 level **and include at least 3h from the biodiversity stream***), completed with a minimum grade of B-. Math 2233, 2243 and 6h chemistry, completed with a minimum grade of C-. All students will take an oral comprehensive examination and defend a thesis during the fourth year of study.

Bachelor of Science with Double Major:

- 1. Biology as first Major: The biology core and 24h additional biology (18h of which are to be at the 3000-4000 level **and include at least 3h from the biodiversity stream***), (42h); 6h chemistry; Math 2233, 2243 (6h)
- 2. Biology as second Major: Biol 1113, 1123, 2013, 2073, 2043 or 2053 and 15h additional biology (12h of which are to be at the 3000-4000 level **and include at least 3h from the biodiversity stream***) (30h)
- 3. Biology with second Major in nutrition: Biology core; 18h additional biology (12h of which must be at the 3000-4000 level) (36h)
- * this is a modification to the program

New course:

BIOL4413 RESEARCH TOPICS II

This course consists of advanced laboratory and/or field investigations of some research topic in biology. Each student will write a research paper and present his or her findings. The research must be supervised or cosupervised by a faculty member in the Department of Biology.

Prereq: BIOL3413 – Credit can only be obtained for BIOL4413 if there is minimal overlap with BIOL3413 and BIOL4996.

Change to calendar description:

BIOL2053 MICROBIAL BIODIVERSITY

An overview of the diversity of microorganisms

including bacteria, Archaea, and Protista. The course will focus on the unique and vital roles that these organisms play in nature. (3h lab) Prereq: Biol 1113/1123 or **Biol 1813** Becomes:

BIOL2053 MICROBIAL BIODIVERSITY

This course is an overview of the diversity of microorganisms on the planet, including Archaea, Bacteria, Protista, Fungi and Viruses, and will focus on the unique and vital roles that these organisms play in their environment. (3h lab) Prereq: Biol 1113/1123 or BIOL1813

Change in calendar description and pre requisite:

BIOL3523 PATHOGENIC MICROBIOLOGY

An examination of microbial diseases predominantly in humans. The pathogenic attributes of various types of infectious disease agents and the host's response to them will be considered. (3h lab) Prereq: Biol 2053

Becomes:

BIOL3523 PATHOGENIC MICROBIOLOGY

This course examines the ceaseless struggle between the antimicrobial defences of humans and the virulence factors of bacterial and protozoan pathogens. Important human infectious diseases will be studied as examples of the contest between hosts and parasites, and as examples of how modern medicine is driving evolution of human pathogens. (3h lab) Prereq: Biol 2053 with C- or better.

Change to calendar description and course title:

BIOL3573 APPLIED MICROBIOLOGY

The applications of microorganisms to human society. The course will study microorganisms in the food industry, industry in general, pollution and bioremediation. Examples where possible will be taken from operations in Nova Scotia. (3h lab) Prereq: Biol 2053 with C- or better Becomes:

BIOL3573 APPLIED AND ENVIRONMENTAL MICROBIOLOGY

The Earth could not support life without the activities of microorganisms. This course will examine the essential roles microbes play in the biosphere, the unusual and surprising ways they have adapted to harsh niches, and how humans are increasingly exploiting their biochemical abilities in food production, water purification, medicines, soil improvement, and energy recovery. (3h lab) Prereq: Biol 2053 with C- or better.

Chemistry

Program deletion:

Delete the description of Bachelor of Science with Double Major Chemistry with Biochemistry and Molecular Biology

Program modification:

Under the section **Bachelor of Science with Honours in Chemistry**: remove the statement "One course (3h) completed with a C+ grade may be replaced by an additional elective chemistry course with a B- grade or better."

Bachelor of Arts with Major in Chemistry: 36h chemistry chosen in consultation with the chemistry department.

Becomes:

Bachelor of Arts with major in Chemistry:

Chem (1013 or 1113), (1023 or 1123), 1053, 2303, 2513, 2533, 2713, (2813 or 2853), (3303, 3313, 3513 or 3523) and 15h additional chemistry, chosen in consultation with the chemistry department (42h)

New course:

CHEM 2773 BIOCHEMISTRY FOR LIFE SCIENCES

An introduction to the structure and function of major micro and macromolecules of living systems, basic principles of molecular biology and protein biosynthesis, biochemistry of vitamins and enzymes. Prereq: Chem 2513 with C- or better.

Change in course title, calendar description and pre requisite:

CHEM 1033 FUNDAMENTAL CHEMISTRY 1

Course content as in Chem 1013. Intended primarily for non-science students, this course is offered through the Division of Continuing Education. The laboratory work consists of video- and computer-ased assignments. Prereq: NS 12 Chemistry or equiv with 60% or better or permission of department Becomes:

CHEM 1033 BASIC CHEMISTRY 1

Basic concepts in chemistry, including stoichiometry, periodic trends and bonding. Intended primarily for non-science students, or students who have not completed NS Chemistry 12 or equivalent. This course is offered through Open Acadia. The laboratory work consists of video- and computer-based assignments. This course may not be used as a prerequisite for admission to other chemistry courses with the exception of Chem 1043.

Change in course title, calendar description and pre requisite:

CHEM 1043 FUNDAMENTAL CHEMISTRY 2

Course content as in Chem 1023. Intended primarily for non-science students, this course is offered through the Division of Continuing Education. The laboratory work consists of video- and computerased assignments. This is a terminal course. It may not be used as a prerequisite for admission to other chemistry courses. Students wishing to take additional chemistry courses must first upgrade their laboratory skills by completing satisfactorily the laboratory components of Chem 1013 and 1023. Prereq: Chem1013 or 1033

Becomes:

CHEM 1043 BASIC CHEMISTRY 2

Basic concepts in chemistry, including properties of gases, liquids, solids and solutions as well as acids and bases. Intended primarily for non-science students, this course is offered through Open Acadia. The laboratory work consists of video- and computer-based assignments. This is a terminal course; it may not be used as a prerequisite for admission to other chemistry courses except Chem 1013 or 1113. Prereq: Chem 1033

Change in pre requisite:

CHEM 3303 INORGANIC CHEMISTRY 2: MAIN GROUP CHEMISTRY

A survey of the main features of the main group elements and an introduction to transition metal chemistry. (3hlab) Prereq: Chem 2303

Becomes:

CHEM 3303 INORGANIC CHEMISTRY 2: MAIN GROUP CHEMISTRY

A survey of the main features of the main group elements and an introduction to transition metal chemistry. (3h lab) Prereq: Chem 2303 with C- or better

Change in pre requisite:

CHEM 3313 INORGANIC CHEMISTRY 2: TRANSITION METAL CHEMISTRY

A survey of the chemistry and bonding of the transition metals, including organometallic chemistry and inorganic compounds of biological interest. (3h lab) Prereq: Chem 2303 becomes:

CHEM 3313 INORGANIC CHEMISTRY 2: TRANSITION METAL CHEMISTRY

A survey of the chemistry and bonding of the transition metals, including organometallic chemistry and inorganic compounds of biological interest. (3h lab) Prereq: Chem 2303 with C- or better

Change in course title and pre requisite:

CHEM 3143 COLLOID AND SURFACE CHEMISTRY

Special topics on the practical aspects of physical chemistry relevant to biological and industrial applications. Emphasis is on colloid, interfacial and surface chemistry. (3h lab) Prereq: Chem 2713 with C- or better

Becomes:

CHEM 3143 SURFACE CHEMISTRY FOR LIFE SCIENCES

Special topics on the practical aspects of physical chemistry relevant to biological and industrial applications. Emphasis is on colloid, interfacial and surface chemistry. (3h lab) Prereq: Chem 2713 or 2773 with C- or better

Change in calendar description and pre requisite:

CHEM 4916 RESEARCH PROJECT FOR CHEMISTRY MAJORS

This course will provide the student with an opportunity to carry out an independent research project under one or more faculty supervisor(s). The course requires 144 hours of research activity, which will normally be spent conducting laboratory experiments or carrying out field work. This course includes a presentation on a research proposal, a presentation on research results, and a written report. Prereq: permission of the supervisor and the department. Credit cannot be obtained for both this course and Chem 4996.

Becomes:

CHEM 4916 RESEARCH PROJECT FOR CHEMISTRY MAJORS

This course consists of 144h of advanced laboratory and/or field investigations of chemical research/education topics. Three platform presentations (research proposal, results, and a final presentation) and a written report are required. Prereq: permission of supervisor and department, and 30h of chemistry courses. Anti-req: Chem 4996. This course does not fulfill the 6h of chemistry at the 4000 level degree requirement.

Change in calendar description and pre requisite:

CHEM 4996 **HONOURS THESIS** There is currently no calendar description Becomes:

CHEM 4996 HONOURS THESIS

This course provides the student with an opportunity to carry out chemical research/education projects. The course requires 144h of research activity conducting laboratory experiments and/or field work. This course includes presentations on a research proposal and research results, a written report and an oral defense. Prereq: permission of thesis supervisor and department, and 30h of chemistry courses. Anti-req: Chem 4916.

Computer Science

Change in calendar description:

COMP 4983 - PROJECT

Experience in the design, development, implementation and documentation of a significant computer software or hardware system. Prereq: 12h computer science at the 3000 or 4000 level, each with C- or better

Becomes:

COMP 4983 -- PROJECT

Experience in the design, development, implementation and documentation of a significant computer software or hardware system; or a thorough literature review and analysis of an aspect of computer science. A final project report and a presentation to the School are required. Prereq: 12h computer science at the 3000 or 4000 level, each with C- or better

Earth and Environmental Science

Program modification:

Modify the GEOL major requirements in the Geology and Environmental Geoscience major and honours programs to include CHEM 2853, ENVS 3423, ENVS 4613 and BIOL 3033 as major options.

BSc with Honours in Environmental Geocience:

Change line 1 from:

The environmental geoscience core, GEOL 4996 and 9h elective geology each completed with a minimum grade of B- (57h)

to:

the environmental geoscience core, GEOL 4996 and 9h elective geology, or prescribed cognate courses, each completed with a minimum grade of B-. Cognate courses are BIOL 3033, CHEM 2853 and ENVS 4613. (57h)

BSc with Major in Environmental Geoscience:

Change line 1 from:

The environmental geoscience core, and 9h elective geology each completed with a minimum grade of C- (51h) to:

The environmental geoscience core, and 9h elective geology, or prescribed cognate courses, each completed with a minimum grade of C-. Cognate courses are BIOL 3033, CHEM 2853 and ENVS 4613. (51h)

BSc with Honours in Geology:

Change line 1 from:

The geology core, GEOL 4996 and 15h elective geology each completed with a minimum grade of B- (54h) to:

The geology core, GEOL 4996 and 15h elective from geology, or prescribed cognate courses, each completed with a minimum grade of B-. Cognate courses are BIOL 3033, CHEM 2853, ENVS 3423 and ENVS 4613. (54h)

BSc with Major in Geology:

Change line 1 from:

The geology core, and 15h elective geology each completed with a minimum grade of C- (48h) to:

The geology core, and 15h elective from geology, or prescribed cognate courses, each completed with a minimum grade of C-. Cognate courses are BIOL 3033, CHEM 2853, ENVS 3423 and ENVS 4613. (48h)

Program modification:

To modify the requirements in the Environmental Science honours programs as follows:

- -change requirement of GEOL 2133+2043 to two of GEOL 2133, 2043, 2753, 3723
- -decrease the number of required GEOL courses by one
- -increase the number of advanced level science courses by one (3h) and include HIST 2283, ESST 2013, POLS 3213, POLS 3883 and POLS 4843
- -amend the requirement of ENVS 3113 to include also HIST 2283, ESST 2013, POLS 3213

Change line 4c from:

Envs 1013, 1023, 3113, 3423, 3523 (or an approved field course), 4613, 4423, 4996 (27h) (BIOL 3013 may be used as a free elective)

to: Envs 1013, 1023, 3113, 3423, 3523 (or an approved field course), 4613, 4423, 4996 **and one of ENVS 3113, HIST 2283, ESST 2013, POLS 3213** (27h) (BIOL 3013 may be used as a free elective)

Change line 4d from:

Geol 1013, 1023, 2703, and 3 h additional Geology at or above the 2000 level (18h)

to:

Geol 1013, 1023, 2043, 2133, 2703, **two of 2043, 2133, 2753 or 3723** (15h)

Change line 4e from:

9 hr additional from advanced level science courses chosen on an individual basis by consultation with the Department

to

9 hr additional from advanced level science courses, **HIST 2283**, **ESST 2013**, **POLS 3213**, **POLS 3883** and **POLS 4843**, chosen on an individual basis by consultation with the Department.

Program modification:

To modify the requirements in the Environmental Science major program as follows:

- change requirement of GEOL 2133+2043 to two of GEOL 2133, 2043, 2753, 3723
- decrease the number of required GEOL courses by one
- increase the number of advanced level science courses by one (3h) and include HIST 2283, ESST 2013, POLS 3213, POLS 3883 and POLS 4843
- amend the requirement of ENVS 3113 to include also HIST 2283, ESST 2013, POLS 3213

Change line 4c from:

Envs 1013, 1023, 3113, 3423, 3523 (or an approved field course), 4613, 4423 (21h) (BIOL 3013 may be used as a free elective)

to

Envs 1013, 1023, 3113, 3423, 3523 (or an approved field course), 4613, 4423, and one of ENVS 3113, HIST 2283, ESST 2013, POLS 3213 (27h) (BIOL 3013 may be used as a free elective)

Change line 4d from:

Geol 1013, 1023, 2043, 2133, 2703, and 3 h additional Geology at or above the 2000 level (18h) to:

Geol 1013, 1023, 2043, 2133, 2703, **two of 2043, 2133, 2753 or 3723** (15h)

Change line 4e from:

6 hr additional from advanced level science courses chosen on an individual basis by consultation with the Department

to:

12 hr additional from advanced level science courses, **HIST 2283, ESST 2013, POLS 3213, POLS 3883 and POLS 4843**, chosen on an individual basis by consultation with the Department. Program modification:

Change the minor requirements for Geology honours and major students so that a minor is viewed as <u>either</u> 4 courses in a minor subject with at least 1 course at the 2000 level (option a) <u>or</u> 9 courses in BIOL, CHEM, COMP, ENVS, MATH, or PHYS (option b). The latter we would consider a general science minor option. For Geology honours or major students this second option consists of the current 6 required courses (CHEM 1013, 1023, 6 h MATH, and PHYS 1053, 1063) plus 3 other courses from BIOL, CHEM, COMP, ENVS, MATH, or PHYS.

GEOL 2043 TECHNIQUES IN PETROLOGY AND STRATIGRAPHY

Origin, occurrence, composition, and classification of igneous sedimentary, and metamorphic rocks. An integrated overview of petrogenetic processes in a plate tectonic framework, including magma genesis, clastic and carbonate depositional processes, stratigraphic principles, and metamorphic zones and facies. Laboratory study of rocks in hand sample and thin section. (3h lab) Prereq: Geol 2133

Becomes:

GEOL 2043 TECHNIQUES IN PETROLOGY AND STRATIGRAPHY

Origin, occurrence, composition, and classification of igneous sedimentary, and metamorphic rocks. An integrated overview of petrogenetic processes in a plate tectonic framework, including magma genesis, clastic and carbonate depositional processes, stratigraphic principles, and metamorphic zones and facies. Laboratory study of rocks in hand sample and thin section. (3h lab) Prereq: Geol 2133; **Prereq or Coreq: GEOL 1023**

Mathematics and Statistics

New course:

MATH 1533 MATHEMATICAL CONCEPTS I

This course is designed for students planning a career in elementary education. Topics will include problem solving, logic and sets, algebra and functions, integers, rational numbers, decimals, percents, and real numbers. Emphasis is placed on the understanding and use of the various concepts that are introduced. Science students, business students, economics students, and mathematics and statistics majors cannot receive credit for this course.

MATH 1543 MATHEMATICAL CONCEPTS II

This course is designed for students planning a career in elementary education. Topics will include problem solving, probability and data analysis, geometry, measurement, motion geometry.

Emphasis is placed on the understanding and use of the various concepts that are introduced. Science students, business students, economics students, and mathematics and statistics majors cannot receive credit for this course.

Change in course pre requisite:

MATH 3713 ORDINARY DIFFERENTIAL EQUATIONS II

Topics include systems of linear differential equations, Sturm-Liouville problems, orthogonal functions, Fourier series, dynamical systems, nonlinear systems. Prereq: Math 2023 or 2723

Becomes:

MATH 3713 ORDINARY DIFFERENTIAL EQUATIONS II

Topics include systems of linear differential equations, Sturm-Liouville problems, orthogonal functions, Fourier series, dynamical systems, nonlinear systems. Prereq: Math 1323 or 1333 and Math 2023 or 2723

Nutrition and Dietetics

Change in academic level:

NUTR 1513 FOOD AND PEOPLE

A study of the diet and changing food habits from a cultural, religious and social context, including the influence of gender roles. Both historical and modern food and cuisine will be examined. Programs and methods for meeting the world's food needs are evaluated and current technology and resources directed to food security and food safety are discussed. Open to nutrition majors and majors/minors of the Women and Gender Studies program.

Becomes:

NUTR 2323 FOOD AND PEOPLE

A study of the diet and changing food habits from a cultural, religious and social context, including the influence of gender roles. Both historical and modern food and cuisine will be examined. Programs and methods for meeting the world's food needs are evaluated and current technology and resources directed to food security and food safety are discussed. Open to nutrition majors and majors/minors of the Women and Gender Studies program

Change in academic level:

NUTR 2203 FOOD COMMODITIES 1

A study of the basic scientific principles underlying the processing of food commodities including vegetables, fruit, meat, fish, poultry. Additional topics will include colloids, sols, gels and rheology. (3h lab) Becomes:

NUTR 1333 FOOD COMMODITIES 1

A study of the basic scientific principles underlying the processing of food commodities including vegetables, fruit, meat, fish, poultry. Additional topics will include colloids, sols, gels and rheology. (3h lab)

Change in academic level and pre requisite:

NUTR 2213 FOOD COMMODITIES 2

A study of the basic scientific principles underlying the processing of food commodities including cereal grains, dairy products and eggs. Additional topics will include food additives, labelling and food security (3h lab) Prereq: Nutr 2203

Becomes:

NUTR 1343 FOOD COMMODITIES 2

A study of the basic scientific principles underlying the processing of food commodities including cereal grains, dairy products and eggs. Additional topics will include food additives, labelling and food security (3h lab) Prereq: Nutr 1333

Change in calendar description and academic level:

NUTR 2503 HUMAN NUTRITION 1

The nutrients essential to human life and well-being, their function in digestion and metabolism, and their sources in food as it is consumed. Emphasis will be placed on vitamins and minerals. Also open to non-nutrition majors with first or second year standing.

Becomes:

NUTR 1313 HUMAN NUTRITION 1

The nutrients essential to human life and well-being, their function in digestion and metabolism, and their sources in food as it is consumed. Also open to non-nutrition majors with first or second year standing.

Change in academic level and pre requisite:

NUTR 2513 HUMAN NUTRITION 2

The application of nutrition through the life cycle. Prereq: Nutr 2503

Becomes:

NUTR 1323 HUMAN NUTRITION 2

The application of nutrition through the life cycle. Prereq: Nutr 1313

Change in pre requisite:

NUTR 3500 **DIETETIC INTERNSHIP PRACTICUM 1**

A 16 week supervised practicum in a hospital, other institutional and/or community setting. Students work under supervision of a registered dietitian and a School of Nutrition and Dietetics supervisor towards meeting Dietitians of Canada educational competencies for membership in one of the provincial licensing bodies. Prereq: Nutr 2203/2213 with B-, Nutr 2503/2513 with B- plus third year standing

Becomes:

NUTR 3500 **DIETETIC INTERNSHIP PRACTICUM 1**

A 16 week supervised practicum in a hospital, other institutional and/or community setting. Students work under supervision of a registered dietitian and a School of Nutrition and Dietetics supervisor towards meeting Dietitians of Canada educational competencies for membership in one of the provincial licensing bodies. Prereq: Nutr 1313/1323 with B-, Nutr 1333/1343 with B- plus third year standing

NUTR 3513 COMMUNITY NUTRITION

Examination of the essential principles in program planning, development, delivery, assessment and evaluation in community nutrition initiatives. Includes strategies for implementing programs across and within select populations. Prereq: Nutr 2513, 3543

Becomes:

NUTR 3513 COMMUNITY NUTRITION

Examination of the essential principles in program planning, development, delivery, assessment and evaluation in community nutrition initiatives. Includes strategies for implementing programs across and within select populations. Prereq: Nutr 1323, 3543

Change in pre requisite:

NUTR 3533 SPORTS NUTRITION

The scientific basis for the recommendation of nutrients to enhance athletic health and performance. Prereq: Nutr 2503

Becomes:

NUTR 3533 SPORTS NUTRITION

The scientific basis for the recommendation of nutrients to enhance athletic health and performance. Prereq: Nutr 1313

Change in pre requisite:

NUTR 3543 NUTRITION EDUCATION

This course examines principles of nutrition education, including program design and implementation, theories of behaviour change, and methods and strategies across the lifespan. Prereq: Nutr 2513 Becomes:

NUTR 3543 NUTRITION EDUCATION

This course examines principles of nutrition education, including program design and implementation, theories of behaviour change, and methods and strategies across the lifespan. Prereq: Nutr 1323

Change in calendar description and pre requisite:

NUTR 3723 PRINCIPLES OF NUTRITIONAL ASSESSMENT

Major principles and methods used in nutritional assessment of individuals/populations in health and disease states will be addressed. Topics include dietary, anthropometric, biochemical and clinical techniques. Prereq: Nutr 2513

Becomes:

NUTR 3723 PRINCIPLES OF NUTRITIONAL ASSESSMENT

Major principles of and methods used in nutritional assessment of populations and individuals in health and disease states including anthropometric, biochemical, clinical, and dietary approaches. Prereq: Nutr 1323

Change in pre requisite:

NUTR 4013 MANAGEMENT IN DIETETICS 1

Food service production and distribution, sanitation, safety, quantity food preparation, strategic planning, menu planning, quality management, risk management, marketing and financial management are examined. Management principles and theory, human resource management and the use of computers as related to food service operations are introduced. (12 hours of Lab Orientation and Safety Tutorials in Nutr 4013 plus six 6 hour labs – spread across Nutr 4013 and 4023). Prereq: Nutr 2213 and fourth year standing, or permission of School Becomes:

NUTR 4013 MANAGEMENT IN DIETETICS 1

Food service production and distribution, sanitation, safety, quantity food preparation, strategic planning, menu planning, quality management, risk management, marketing and financial management are examined. Management principles and theory, human resource management and the use of computers as related to food service operations are introduced. (12 hours of Lab Orientation and Safety Tutorials in Nutr 4013 plus six 6 hour labs – spread across Nutr 4013 and 4023). Prereq: Nutr 1343 and fourth year standing, or permission of School

Becomes:

NUTR 4223 SENSORY EVALUATION OF FOOD

Principles involved in the evaluation of the appearance, taste, smell and texture of foods, with an emphasis on their role in food product development. Evaluation approaches, including consumer and analytical tests are covered in theory and in practice. The laboratory component includes a research project on sensory attributes of foods. (3h lab) Prereq: Math 1223 or 2243, Nutr 2213

NUTR 4223 SENSORY EVALUATION OF FOOD

Principles involved in the evaluation of the appearance, taste, smell and texture of foods, with an emphasis on their role in food product development. Evaluation approaches, including consumer and analytical tests are covered in theory and in practice. The laboratory component includes a research project on sensory attributes of foods. (3h lab) Prereq: Math 1223 or 2243, Nutr 1343

Change in pre requiste;

NUTR 4513 NUTRITION IN HEALTH AND DEVELOPMENT

This course will enable the student to identify problems in global health and nutrition, analyze theories of development and debate the issues around setting of priorities for health and development at home and abroad. It will provide opportunities to formulate and analyze approaches for mobilizing community participation in nutrition and health care. Prereq: Nutr 1513, 2513, 3513, with grade of C- or better or permission of School Becomes:

NUTR 4513 NUTRITION IN HEALTH AND DEVELOPMENT

This course will enable the student to identify problems in global health and nutrition, analyze theories of development and debate the issues around setting of priorities for health and development at home and abroad. It will provide opportunities to formulate and analyze approaches for mobilizing community participation in nutrition and health care. Prereq: Nutr 1323, 2323, 3513, or permission of School

Change in pre requisite:

NUTR 4523 ADVANCED HUMAN NUTRITION

Recent development in human nutrition. The integration of nutrition, biochemistry and physiology is stressed. Independent survey of periodical literature in this field. Prereq: Biol 2823, Nutr 2513 Becomes:

NUTR 4523 ADVANCED HUMAN NUTRITION

Recent development in human nutrition. The integration of nutrition, biochemistry and physiology is stressed. Independent survey of periodical literature in this field. Prereq: Biol 2823, Nutr 1323

Change in calendar description:

NUTR 4533 NUTRITION AND DISEASE 1

Epidemiology, pathophysiology and role of medical nutrition therapy in the management of several widespread chronic conditions including diabetes, cardiovascular diseases,

disorders of energy balance and bone health. Practical applications are studied in case studies (3h lab/tutorial). Prereq: Biol 2823, Nutr 3723

Becomes:

NUTR 4533 NUTRITION AND DISEASE 1

Epidemiology, pathophysiology and the role of medical nutrition therapy in the management of selected chronic conditions. Practical applications are explored through case studies (3h lab/tutorial). Prereq: Biol 2823, Nutr 3723

NUTR 4543 MATERNAL AND INFANT NUTRITION

The importance of nutrition to the outcome of pregnancy. Topics include; physiology of pregnancy and lactation; nutritional requirements and food habits of pregnant women; methods of feeding, nutritional requirements and growth and development of the infant and pre-schooler. Prereq: Biol 2823, Nutr 2513, Chem 3723 or Biol 2013 Becomes:

NUTR 4543 MATERNAL AND INFANT NUTRITION

The importance of nutrition to the outcome of pregnancy. Topics include; physiology of pregnancy and lactation; nutritional requirements and food habits of pregnant women; methods of feeding, nutritional requirements and growth and development of the infant and pre-schooler. Prereq: Biol 2823, Nutr 1323

Change in pre requisite:

NUTR 4733 FOOD PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT

The chemical, procedural and technological aspects of food product development. The functionality of food ingredients in relation to the formulation of food products is covered. Evaluation techniques employed in measuring the physical and sensory attributes of food systems are included. (3h lab) Prereq: Nutr 2213 Becomes:

NUTR 4733 FOOD PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT

The chemical, procedural and technological aspects of food product development. The functionality of food ingredients in relation to the formulation of food products is covered. Evaluation techniques employed in measuring the physical and sensory attributes of food systems are included. (3h lab) Prereq: Nutr 1343

Change in pre requisite:

NUTR 4743 INTRODUCTION TO NUTRITION AND HEALTH RESEARCH

A study of the principles and application of the research process related to nutrition and health. Focus of the course includes identifying a research problem, searching the literature, devising a protocol, and selecting methods of analysis. Ethical and other considerations will be discussed. These principles will be applied in the preparation of a research proposal. Prereq: Math 1223 or 2243, Nutr 2513, third year standing or permission Becomes:

NUTR 4743 INTRODUCTION TO NUTRITION AND HEALTH RESEARCH

A study of the principles and application of the research process related to nutrition and health. Focus of the course includes identifying a research problem, searching the literature, devising a protocol, and selecting methods of analysis. Ethical and other considerations will be discussed. These principles will be applied in the preparation of a research proposal. Prereq: Math 1223 or 2243, Nutr 1323, third year standing or permission of School

Change in pre requisite:

NUTR 4913 SPECIAL TOPICS IN NUTRITION

In depth study of a selected topic in the field. Designed to enable students to take advantage of a particular expertise of visiting or permanent faculty. Prereq; Nutr 2513 and permission of School Becomes:

NUTR 4913 SPECIAL TOPICS IN NUTRITION

In depth study of a selected topic in the field. Designed to enable students to take advantage of a particular expertise of visiting or permanent faculty. Prereq; Nutr 1323 and permission of School

Change in calendar description:

NUTR 4996 HONOURS THESIS

Prereq: Nutr 4743

Becomes:

NUTR 4996 HONOURS THESIS

The Honours Thesis provides an opportunity for a student, under the guidance of a supervisor, to select a research topic, conduct a literature review of the topic, write a research proposal, carry out the research, and present it in a professional manner both orally and as a written thesis. Prereq: Nutr 4743

Program modification:

Increasing the CGPA for admission to the Bachelor of Science in Nutrition (Honours) program and requiring the agreement of a faculty member to supervise the thesis.

Program description:

Bachelor of Science in Nutrition (Honours): A CGPA of 3.0 3.33 or better in 120h is required for honours. A minimum 48h in nutrition courses must each be passed with a B- grade or better. A Minor consists of 12h in another subject, each course passed with a grade of C- or better. A thesis is mandatory. Students in the Kinesiology option may use Kine 3013 and Kine 4333 as part of their nutrition requirement. Admission also requires agreement of a faculty member in the School to supervise the thesis.

Program modification:

The following text is to be inserted between the Bachelor of Science (Health and Development option) and Co-op option in the School of Nutrition and Dietetics section. It is all new text.

Multidisciplinary Minors

In place of a minor in a single subject, Bachelor of Science in Nutrition and Bachelor of Science in Nutrition (Honours) students may complete an 18h multidisciplinary minor, subject to specific program requirements. Students interested in this option should discuss it with their academic advisor. Multidisciplinary minors include American Studies, Atlantic Canadian Studies, Canadian Studies, Comparative Religion, Cultural Studies, Diaspora Studies, International Development Studies, Environmental Studies, Legal Studies, Women's and Gender Studies, and World Literatures

Physics

Change in calendar description:

PHYS 1013 **INTRODUCTORY PHYSICS 1** Classical mechanics, including kinematics, dynamics, energy, systems of particles, rotational motion, oscillations, waves and sound. Topics are developed using vectors and elementary calculus. (2h lecture/4h studio) Prereq: Grade 12 physics recommended. Coreq: Math 1013 becomes:

PHYS 1013 **INTRODUCTORY PHYSICS Physics 1** Classical mechanics, including kinematics, dynamics, energy, systems of particles, rotational motion, oscillations, waves and sound. Topics are developed using vectors and elementary calculus. (3h lecture/3h studio) Prereq: Grade 12 physics recommended. Coreq: Math 1013

Change in calendar description:

PHYS 1023 **INTRODUCTORY PHYSICS 2** Electric and magnetic fields and modern physics. Topics include Gauss's law, electric potential, capacitors, Ohm's law, D.C. circuits, Faraday's law, inductance, and topics in modern physics. (2h lecture/4h studio) Prereq: Phys 1013 or 1063; Coreq: Math 1023 becomes:

PHYS 1023 **INTRODUCTORY PHYSICS 2** Electric and magnetic fields and modern physics. Topics include Gauss's law, electric potential, capacitors, Ohm's law, D.C. circuits, Faraday's law, inductance, and topics in modern physics. (3h lecture/3h studio) Prereq: Phys 1013 or 1063; Coreq: Math 1023

Change in calendar description and pre requisite:

PHYS 3433 QUANTUM MECHANICS 1

Careful attention is given to establishing the fundamental concepts of the theory. Topics include discussion of the wave function and the Fourier integral, operator methods, matrix mechanics, solutions of one and three-dimensional systems, perturbation theory, the harmonic oscillator and one-electron atoms. Becomes:

PHYS 3433 QUANTUM MECHANICS 1

Careful attention is given to establishing the fundamental concepts of the theory. Topics include discussion of the wave function and the Fourier integral; solutions of one-dimensional systems, including the harmonic oscillator; operator methods and matrix mechanics; solutions of three-dimensional systems, including one-electron atoms; and time-independent perturbation theory.

Prereq: Phys $\underline{2413}$ (with a minimum grade of B-) or permission of the department, Math $\underline{2023}$ or $\underline{2723}$, Math $\underline{2013}$ or $\underline{2753}$.

Change in calendar description and pre requisite:

PHYS 4433 QUANTUM MECHANICS 2

Phys 4433 is a continuation of Phys 3433. The student is introduced to time-dependent perturbation theory and other approximation methods, as well as applications of the theory including many particle systems, charged particles and the electromagnetic field, selected topics on radiation, and collision theory.

Becomes:

PHYS 4433 QUANTUM MECHANICS 2

Phys 4433 is a continuation of Phys 3433. The student is introduced to time-dependent perturbation theory and other approximation methods, as well as applications of the theory including many particle systems, selected topics on radiation, and scattering theory.

Prereq: Phys <u>3433</u>, Phys <u>3253</u>

New course:

PHYS 4773 FLUID DYNAMICS (also MATH 4773)

Topics may include the Navier-Stokes equations, streamlines, circulation, vorticity, irrotational flow, potential flow, laminar flow, gravity waves, dimensional analysis, geophysical fluid dynamics, turbulence, hydrodynamic instability. Prereq/Coreq: Math 4753 or permission of instructor

Program modification:

Revising the core course requirements for the Physics major to replace the option of APSC 1413 & APSC 2613 with an option of two of APSC 1413, APSC 2613, COMP 1113, and COMP 1123. Physics core (27h): Phys 1013 or 1053/1063, 1023, 2113, 2203, 2213, 2413, 2523, 3253, and 3613. Phys 1053/1063, 1513/1523, 1543 and 1553 may not be offered to fulfill Major requirements. Students must offer a minimum of Math 1013, 1023, 1333 or 1323, 2723, 2753 (15h), and Chem 1013/1023 or Chem 1113/1123 or two of APSC 1413, 2613, Comp 1113, 1123 (6h).

Bachelor of Science with Double Major

1. Physics as first Major: Phys 1013 or 1053/1063, 1023, 2113, 2203, 2213, 2413, 2523, 3253, 3613, 9h additional physics; Math 1013/1023, 1333 or 1323, 2723/2753 or 2013/2023 (15h); Chem 1013/1023 or Chem 1113/1123 or two of APSC 1413, 2613, Comp 1113, 1123 (6h).

Psychology

New course:

PSYC 4413 **SPECIAL TOPICS IN NEUROSCIENCE** The focus and instructor will vary as determined by the department. Restricted to students with backgrounds appropriate to the particular subject matter. Prereq: Psyc 2023 and permission of the Psychology Department.

New course:

PSYC 4423 SPECIAL TOPICS IN APPLIED PSYCHOLOGY

The focus and instructor will vary as determined by the department. Restricted to students with backgrounds appropriate to the particular subject matter. Prereq: Psyc 2023 and permission of the Psychology Department.

Change in course description and pre requisite:

PSYC 3373 CLINICAL PSYCHOLOGY

Roles and functions of clinical psychologists will be presented, with special emphasis on psychological assessment, therapeutic intervention, and community consultation. Also included in the course will be issues in method and inference associated with clinical research, and ethical issues that arise in clinical psychology. Students will be expected to have a thorough grounding in research methods, abnormal psychology, and personality. Prereq: Psyc 2013, 2113; Psyc 2123 or Musi 1553

Becomes:

PSYC 3373 CLINICAL PSYCHOLOGY

Roles and functions of clinical psychologists will be presented, with special emphasis on psychological assessment, therapeutic intervention, and community consultation. Also included in the course will be issues in method and inference associated with clinical research, and ethical issues that arise in clinical psychology. Prereq: Psyc 2113; Psyc 2123 recommended.

Program modification:

Adding another pair of courses to satisfy the math requirements, adding reference to revised special topics course numbering, and correcting wording to allow students to count more than one lab course toward the applied option.

Psychology core (27h):

- 1. Psyc 1013, 1023, 2013, 2023
- 2. Math 1213, 1223 or Math 2233, 2243 or Math 2213, 2223
- 3. 3h from Psyc 2113 or 2123
- 4. 3h from Psyc 2133, 2143 or 2173
- 5. 3h from Psyc 2103 or 2153

The same course cannot be used to fulfill both core and psychology electives.

Bachelor of Arts with Honours in Psychology

- 1. The psychology core (27h)
- 2. Psyc 3023, 3243, 4183, 4996 (15h)
- 3. A 3000-level psychology course with a laboratory component (e.g. 3053, 3083, 3353, or 3363 or Biol 3063) (3h)
- 4. 9h additional Psyc; 3h of which must be at 3000 or 4000 level
- 5. B- or better is required in all courses offered to fulfill these requirements.

Admission to the honours program is competitive and normally open only to students with a program GPA of 3.33 or better, and at least a B- in Psyc 3243. Admission also requires permission of the department and agreement of a faculty member in the department to supervise the thesis. Application is made in the penultimate year, following procedures published by the department.

Bachelor of Arts with Major in Psychology

- 1. The psychology core (27h)
- 2. 18h additional Psyc 12h, of which must be at the 3000/4000 level
- 3. C- or better is required in all courses offered to fulfill these requirements.

The same course cannot be used to fulfill more than one requirement.

Bachelor of Arts with Double Major

- 1. Psychology as first major: the psychology core (27h), 15h of Psyc, 9h of which must be at the 3000/4000 level
- 2. Psychology as second major: the psychology core (27h); 9h of Psyc at 3000/4000 level.

Bachelor of Arts with Major in Psychology (Applied Psychology Option)

- 1. The psychology core (27 h)
- 2. 18h (with a 15h minor), or 21h (with a 12h minor), from Psyc 2183, 3183, 3193, 3373, 3383, 4053, 4103, 4203,
- **4423**, 3353(L), 3363(L), Kine 2433, Kine 3683, at least 3 h of which must be a course with a laboratory component, as indicated by "(L)".
- 3. C- or better is required in all courses offered to fulfill these requirements

Bachelor of Arts with Honours in Psychology (Applied Psychology Option)

- 1. The psychology core (27 h)
- 2. Psyc 3023, 3243, 4183, 4996 (15 h)
- 3. 18 h from Psyc 2183, 3183, 3193, 3373, 3383, 4053, 4103, 4203, **4423**, 3353(L), 32363(L), Kine 2433, Kine 3683, at least 3 h of which must be a course with a laboratory component, as indicated by "(L)".
- 4. B- or better is required in all courses offered to fulfill these requirements

Program modification:

Psychology core (27h):

- 1. Psyc 1013, 1023, 2013, 2023
- 2. Math 1213, 1223 or Math 2233, 2243 or Math 2213, 2223
- 3. 3h from Psyc 2113 or 2123
- 4. 3h from Psyc 2133, 2143 or 2173
- 5. 3h from Psyc 2103 or 2153

The same course cannot be used to fulfill both core and psychology electives.

Bachelor of Science with Honours in Psychology

- 1. The psychology core (27h)
- 2. Psyc 3023, 3243, 4183, 4996 (15h)
- 3. A 3000-level psychology course with a laboratory component (3053, 3083, 3353, or 3363 or Biol 3063) (3h)
- 4. 9h additional Psyc; 3h of which must be at 3000 or 4000 level
- 5. B- or better is required in all courses offered to fulfill these requirements.

Admission to the honours program is competitive and normally open only to students with a program GPA of 3.33 or better, and at least a B- in Psyc 3243. Admission also requires permission of the department and agreement of a faculty member in the department to supervise the thesis. Application is made in the penultimate year, following procedures published by the department.

Bachelor of Science with Major in Psychology

- 1. The psychology core (27h)
- 2. a) 18h Psyc (with a 15h Minor), 12h of which must be at the 3000/4000 level; OR
- b) 21h Psyc (with a 12h Minor), 15h of which must be at the 3000/4000 level; OR
- c) 9h Psyc (with two 18h Minors), all of which must be at the 3000/4000 level
- 3. C- or better is required in all courses offered to fulfill these requirements.

The same course cannot be used to fulfill more than one requirement.

Bachelor of Science with Major in Psychology (Neuroscience Option)

- 1. The psychology core (27 h)
- 2. Psyc 2133, and one of Psyc 2143 or Psyc 2173 (Note: one of Psyc 2133 or Psyc
- 2143 will be counted in the psychology core)
- 3. 18h from Psyc 3133, 3323, 3383, 3613, 4323, 4343, **4413**, 3053(L), 3083(L). Biol 3063(L) Biol 3143, Kine 4373, at least 3 h of which must be a course with a laboratory component, as indicated by "(L)".
- 4. C- or better is required in all courses offered to fulfill these requirements

Bachelor of Science with Honours in Psychology (Neuroscience Option)

Students must complete all requirements specified in both the BSc with Honours in Psychology program and BSc with Major in Psychology (Neuroscience Option) program including achieving a grade of B- or better on requirements listed in the BSc with Honours in Psychology.

Bachelor of Science with Major in Psychology (Applied Psychology Option)

- 1. The psychology core (27 h)
- 2. 18h (with a 15h minor), or 21h (with a 12h minor), from Psyc 2183, 3183, 3193,
- 3373, 3383, 4053, 4103, 4203, **4423**, 3353(L), 3363(L), Kine 2433, Kine 3683, at least 3 h of which must be a course with a laboratory component, as indicated by "(L)".
- 3. C- or better is required in all courses offered to fulfill these requirements

Bachelor of Science with Honours in Psychology (Applied Psychology Option)

- 1. The psychology core (27 h)
- 2. Psyc 3023, 3243, 4183, 4996 (15 h)
- 3. 18h from Psyc 2183, 3183, 3193, 3373, 3383, 4053, 4103, 4203, **4423**, 3353(L), 3363(L), Kine 2433, Kine 3683, at least 3 h of which must be a course with a lab component, as indicated by "(L)...
- 4. B- or better is required in all courses offered to fulfill these requirements

Faculty of Pure and Applied Science

Program modifications:

Delete

1. 6h English or one language other than English

And replace with

1. 6h from the Faculty of Arts selected from the courses with a significant writing component as listed at www.science.acadiau.ca/sigwrtingcourseslist or 6h of a single language other than English.

In the descriptions for the

- Bachelor of Science (Major),
- Bachelor of Science (Double Major),
- Bachelor of Science with Honours,
- Bachelor of Science with Honours and Second Major, and
- Bachelor of Science (Foundation Option) (42/18/18/18 Major)

Add the option of multi-disciplinary minors for B.Sc. (Major) and B.Sc. (Honours) students. The modification would be restricted to students completing an 18h minor.

Computer Science

Modifications to programs:

For BCS, BCSH and BCSS degrees

4. 6h English or one language other than English

Becomes:

4. 6h from the Faculty of Arts selected from the courses with a significant writing component as listed at www.science.acadiau.ca/sigwrtingcourseslist, or 6h of a single language other than English, or Comm 1213 and 1223.

Nutrition and Dietetics

Program modification:

Renumbering of five core nutrition courses (housekeeping). Revising the language requirement for the program.. Nutrition core: Nutr 1513, 2203, 2213, 2503, 2513, 1313, 1323, 1333, 1343, 2323, 3713, 3723, 4533, 4903 (27h) Bachelor of Science in Nutrition

- 1. The nutrition core (27h)
- 2. Biol 1813, 2053, 2813, 2823 (12h)
- 3. Chem 1013, 1023, 2513, 2713 (12h)
- 4. Math 1213/1223 or 2233/2243 (6h)
- 5. Psyc 1013,1023 (6h)
- 6. Nutr 3543, 4223, 4523, 6h Nutr electives (15h)

- 7. English or one language other than English (6h) 6h from the Faculty of Arts selected from the courses with a significant writing component listed at www.science.acadiau.ca/sigwritingcourseslist (6h)
- 8. 6h from the Faculty of Arts (6h)
- 9. 30h university electives (30h)

Program modification:

Bachelor of Science in Nutrition (Dietetics option)

- 1. The nutrition core (27h)
- 2. Biol 1813, 2053, 2813, 2823 (12h)
- 3. Chem 1013, 1023, 2513, 2713 (12h)
- 4. Math 1213/1223 or 2233/2243 (6h)
- 5. Nutr 3513, 3543, 4013, 4023, 4223, 4523, 4553, 4743, 3h Nutr elective (27h)
- 6. Psyc 1013,1023 (6h)
- 7. English or one language other than English (6h) 6h from the Faculty of Arts selected from the courses with a significant writing component listed at www.science.acadiau.ca/sigwritingcourseslist (6h)
- 8. 6h from the Faculty of Arts (6h)
- 9. 18h university electives (18h)

Students completing this option will meet the eligibility requirements for application to accredited Dietitians of Canada internships.

Program modification:

Bachelor of Science in Nutrition (Health and Development option)

- 1. The nutrition core (27h)
- 2. Biol 1813, 2013, 2053, 2813, 2823 (15h)
- 3. Kine 2493 (3h)
- 4. Chem 1013, 1023 (6h)
- 5. Math 1213/1223 or 2233/2243 (6h)
- 6. Psyc 1013, 1023 (6h)
- 7. Nutr 3513, 3523, 3543, 4513, 4543 (15h)
- 8. English or one language other than English (6h) 6h from the Faculty of Arts selected from the courses with a significant writing component listed at www.science.acadiau.ca/sigwritingcourseslist (6h)
- 9. 6h from the Faculty of Arts (6h)
- 10. 30h university electives (30h)

Program modification:

Adding Nutr 4223 (Sensory Evaluation of Food) as a required course (to replace one of the 3h nutrition electives) and 6 hours of Arts electives (thereby reducing the number of University electives) is for consistency with our other programs. Revising the language requirement is to ensure that students going into third and fourth year have a stronger background in writing, which to this point may not have been included in their program of study. Bachelor of Science in Nutrition (Kinesiology option)

- 1. The nutrition core (27h)
- 2. Kine 3013 and 12h Kine electives (other than Kine 2293, 2413, 2423) (15h)
- 3. Biol 1813, 3h Biol elective, Biol 2813/2823 or Kine 2413/2423 (credit can only be obtained for one of these pairs of courses) (12h)
- 4. Chem 1013, 1023, 2513, 2713 (12h)
- 5. Math 1213/1223 or 2233/2243 (6h)
- 6. Psyc 1013, 1023 (6h)
- 7. Nutr 3543, **4223**, 4523, 9h 6h Nutr electives (15h)
- 8. English or one language other than English (6h) 6h from the Faculty of Arts selected from the courses with a significant writing component listed at www.science.acadiau.ca/sigwritingcourseslist (6h)

9. 6h from the Faculty of Arts (6h)

10. 21h 15h university electives (15h)

A maximum of 12 students will be accepted each year.

Students interested in this option will be considered for admission in the winter semester of their second year in the Bachelor of Science in Nutrition program.

An overall cumulative GPA of 2.75 is required for Admissions admission to this option.

Program modification:

This change is to ensure that students going into third and fourth year have a stronger background in writing, which to this point may not have been included in their program of study.

Bachelor of Science in Nutrition with second major in Biology

- 1. The nutrition core (27h)
- 2. Biol 1113/1123 or 1813/1823, 2013, 2043 or 2053, 2073, 15h additional Biol (12h of which must be at the 3000/4000 level) completed with a C- or higher (30h)
- 3. Chem 1013, 1023, 2513, 2713 (12h)
- 4. Math 2233, 2243 (6h)
- 5. Psyc 1013, 1023 (6h)
- 6. Nutr 3543, 4223, 4523, 6h Nutr electives (15h)
- 7. English or one language other than English (6h) 6h from the Faculty of Arts selected from the courses with a significant writing component listed at www.science.acadiau.ca/sigwritingcourseslist (6h)
- 8. 6h from the Faculty of Arts (6h)
- 9. 12h university electives (12h)